
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
DATE:  October 25, 2023 
TIME:  9:00 a.m. 
PLACE: Polk County Courthouse, Dallas, Oregon 
 

THE LOCATION OF THIS MEETING IS ADA ACCESSIBLE. PLEASE ADVISE THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS AT (503-623-8173), AT LEAST 24 HOURS IN ADVANCE, OF ANY SPECIAL 

ACCOMMODATIONS NEEDED TO ATTEND OR TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIRTUALLY. 

 
PAGE:         AGENDA ITEMS 
 
  1. CALL TO ORDER AND NOTE OF ATTENDANCE 

  
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
(a) Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 

Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principal 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, the Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda.  The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00am on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon. 
 

(b) The Polk County Board of Commissioners will be attending the Polk County Local Public Safety 
Coordinating Council meeting on November 6, 2023 at 12:00 p.m., located at 850 Main St., Dallas, OR 
97338. 
 

(c) The Polk Extension Service District will be meeting at 10:00 am on November 7, 2023. The meeting 
will be in the main conference room located on the first floor of 850 Main St Dallas OR 97338. 
 

(d) The Homeless Prevention Advisory Council (AKA P.A.T.H.S) will be meeting on November 8, 2023 
from 12:00 pm to 1:30 pm located in the first floor conference room at 182 SW Academy St, Dallas 
Oregon, 97338. 

 
 

  3. COMMENTS (for items not on this agenda and limited to 3 minutes) 

  4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

  5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM October 18, 2023 

  6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 

  7. SECOND READING OF AN ORDINANCE CONCERNING CONSTRUCTION EROSION, SEDIMENT 
CONTROL AND POST CONSTRUCTION RUNOFF CONTROL – Morgan Smith 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
        

(a) Polk County Contract No. 23-207, Polk Soil and Water Conservation District 
(Eric McAvoy, GIS Manager) 
 

   (b)   Polk County Ordinance No. 23-02, In the Matter of Enacting Chapter 64 to the Polk County 
Code of Ordinances.  

    (Morgan Smith, County Counsel) 
 
   (c)   Polk County Ordinance No. 23-03, Amendments to the Polk County Zoning Ordinance 

Chapter 136 
    (Eric Knudson, Community Development) 
 
   (d)   Polk County Planning Commission Re-Appointment, Michael Schilling 
    (Nicole Pineda, Executive Assistant 
 

(e)   Polk County Planning Commission Re-Appointment, Chris Patoine 
 (Nicole Pineda, Executive Assistant 

 
(f)   Polk County Fair Board Re-Appointment, Suzanne Burbank 

 (Nicole Pineda, Executive Assistant) 
 
 
 
 
 



 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MINUTES October 18, 2023  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER & ATTENDANCE 

At 9:00 a.m., Commissioner Gordon declared the meeting of the Polk County Board of Commissioners 
to be in session. Commissioner Pope was present and Commissioner Mordhorst was present via 
Zoom. 
 
Staff present: Greg Hansen, Administrative Officer 
  Morgan Smith, County Counsel 
  Matt Hawkins, Administrative Services Director 
          
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 
Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principle 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, The Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda. The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00 a.m. on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon.  
 
 

 
3. COMMENTS 
 None. 
 

 
4.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER POPE MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST SECONDED, 
TO APPROVE THE AGENDA. 

 
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD.  
 
5.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF BOARD MEETING OF October 11, 2023 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER POPE SECONDED, 
TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF October 11, 2023. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 
 
 
 
 
6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER POPE MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST SECONDED, 
TO APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 
 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 



October 18, 2023 
Page 2 

 

  

The following items were approved by Motion under 5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 

 
 
There no need for an executive session and Commissioner Gordon adjourned the meeting 
at 9:03 A.M. 
 

 

  
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
       

        

 Jeremy Gordon, Chair   
 
 

                                                       
    Craig Pope, Commissioner 

        
                 
         
         Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner 
 
 
 
 
Minutes: Nicole Pineda  
Approved: October 25, 2023 

(a) Polk County Contract No. 23-202, Yamhill County 
(Jodi Merritt, Community Corrections Director) 
 

   (b)   Polk County Contract No. 23-203 (Amendment 1 to 23-94), Building Codes Division 
    (Valerie Patoine, Polk County Assessor) 
 
   (c)   Polk County Contract No. 23-204 (Amendment 2 to 23-109), Oregon Health Authority 
    (Rosana Warren, Public Health) 



Contract  Review Sheet

Staff Contact:  

Title:  

Department:

Consent Calendar Date:  

Contractor Name:  

Address:  

Background/Discussion: 

    Thru: 
City, State, Zip: 
Effective Dates - From: 
Contract Amount: $ 

Fiscal Impact:  

Recommendation:  

Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following:   

Name:  

Name:  

Name:

E-mail:  

E-mail:  

E-mail:

Source Selection: 
Sole Source 

Competitive Quotes 

Formal Bid

Request for Proposals

Personal Services

Special/Exempt Procurement (explain below): 

_______________________________________________

_______________________________________________



Polk County Contract No. 23-207









 

 1 of 2  

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
FOR THE COUNTY OF POLK, STATE OF OREGON 
 
 
In the Matter of Enacting Chapter 64  ) 
to the Polk County Code of Ordinances ) 
      ) 
 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. 23-02 
 
THE POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Sec. 1.  Enactment.  Polk County Code of Ordinances is amended by the 
enactment of Chapter 64, which reads in full as attached in Exhibit A.  
 
 Sec. 2.  Severability.  Should any section or portion of this ordinance be held 
unlawful or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall apply only 
to the specific section, or portion thereof, directly specified in the decision.  All other sections or 
portions of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 Sec. 3.  Emergency.  This ordinance being immediately necessary to protect public 
safety and property, an emergency is declared, and this ordinance is effective immediately upon 
passage. 
 
 
Dated: October 25, 2023 at Dallas, Oregon 
 
 
     POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
      
     ____________________________________________ 
     Jeremy Gordon, Chairman 
 
 
     ____________________________________________  
     Craig Pope, Commissioner 
 
 
     ____________________________________________  
     Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner 
 
 



 

 2 of 2  

 
Approved as to Form: 
      
 
      
County Counsel 
 
First Reading: 10/11/2023  
Second Reading: 10/25/2023  
Recording Secretary:   
 



Porr CouNrY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

POLK COUNTY
POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE * DALLAS, OREGON 97338
(so3) 623-9237

AUSTIN M"GUIGAN
Director

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT:

MEMORANDUM

Board of Commissioners

Eric Knudson, Associate Planner

October 18,2023

Ordinance 23-03: Amendments to the Polk County ZoningOrdinance Chapter 136

Consent Calendar - October 2512023

RECOMMENDATION:

Planning staff recommends that the Board of Commissioners adopt Ordinance 23-03 in order to
amend the text to Polk County ZoningOrdinance (PCZO) Chapter 136, as approved in
Legislative Amendment (LA) 23-02.

ISSUE:

Should Polk County adopt changes to PCZO Chapter 136 to bring the local ordinance into
compliance with State law, and adopt additional provisions for uses that could be permitted in
the Exclusive Farm Use (EFU) Zoning District?

BACKGROUND:

On April 1I,2023 Legislative Amendment (LA) 23-02 was initiated by the Polk CountY-Bo_ard 
-

of Commissioners in order to consider potential changes toPCZO Chapter 136 to bring the local
ordinance into compliance with State law, and add provisions for additional uses that could be
permitted in the EFU zone.

On July 18,2023 the Polk County Planning Commission conducted a duly noticed public
hearing and recommended that the Polk County Board of Commissioners adopt the proposed
amendments to PCZO Chapter 136. On September 6,2023 the Polk County Board of
Commissioners conducted a duly noticed public hearing and on October 11,2023 the Board of
Commissioners deliberated and passed a motion to approve the proposed text amendments, as

recommended by the Planning Commission and Planning Staff.

ALTERNATIVES:

1. Adopt Ordinance 23-03, included as Exhibit A;

2. Direct staff to amend Ordinance 23-03 and return it to the Board for adoption; or

3. Other.

FISCAL ACTS:

No fiscal impacts to the County have been identified

EXHIBITS
EXHIBIT A Ordinance 23-03 with attachments



EXHIBIT A

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR
POLK COUNTY, OREGON

In the matter of Legislative Amendment )
LA23-02; amendments to the Polk County )
Zoning Ordinance Chapter 136 to bring the )
local ordinance into compliance with State )
State law, and to adopt optional changes for )
uses that could be permitted in the Exclusive)
Farm Use ZoningDistrict )

ORDINANCE NO. 23.03

WHEREAS, on April lI,2023,the Polk County Board of Commissioners initiated
Legislative Amendment2i-}2 to evaluate updates to-Jhe text of Polk Qgunty Zoniy9
Orlinance Chapter 136 in order to bring the-local ordinance into-complt3.t"9 with State law
and to consideioptional changes for uses that could be permitted in the Exclusive Farm Use

(EFU) Zoning District; and

duly
and

WHEREAS, on July 18,2023,the Polk County Planning Commission.conducted a

noticed public hearing for Legislative Amendment 23-02 and received public testimony;

WHEREAS' the Polk County Planning Commission deliberated at the July 18,-2!??
public hearing and recommended that the Polk-County Board of Commissioners amend Polk
'County ZoniigOrdinance Chapter 136 in orderto c-ompJy with State law and to adopt
additional staridards for uses that could be permitted in the EFU Zoning District, as

recommended by Planning Staff; and

WHEREAS, on September 6, 2023 the Polk County Board of Commissioners
conducted a duly noiiced puUtic hearing, received pu_b]ic teglimony, and left the record open

for additional written comments through September 20,2023; and

WHEREAS, on October 11, 2023 rhe Polk County Board of Commissioners
deliberated in a public meeting, and, after considering all of the PuFJi. testimony, passed a

motion to approve Legislative Amendment 23-02 as recommended by the Polk County

Planning Commissionand Planning Staff; now therefore

THE POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

Sec. 1 That Polk County Adopts the findings in support of Po$County Legislative
Amendment 23-02 contained in Section III of the August 30,2023 Staff Memorandum as

Attachment A hereto.

Sec. 2 That Polk County Adopts the findings in support of_Polk CognJy _L^egislalive
Amendment LA23-02 contained in thb Background sectionbf the October 3,2023 Staff
Deliberation Memorandum as Attachment B hereto.

Sec. 3 That Polk County Adopts amendments to the Polk County Zoning Ordinance
as set forth in Attachment C hereto.

Page I of2 Ordinance 23-03



1

2

3

4
5

6

7

8

9

l0
ll
l2
l3
14

l5
t6
t7
18

19

20

2t
22

23

24
25

26

27

28

29

30

3t
32

JJ

34

35

36

Approved as to Form

Sec. 4 That Polk
welfare of the citizens of Polk
upon passage.

Dated this 25th day of October, 2023 at Dallas, Oregon.

EXHIBIT A

to the economic
effective immediately

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Jeremy Gordon, Chair

Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner

Craig Pope, Commissioner

Morgan Smith
County Counsel

First Reading:
Second Reading
Recording Secretary:

Page 2 of2 Ordinance 23-03



64-1

CHAPTER 64 2023 

CONSTRUCTION EROSION, SEDIMENT AND RUNOFF CONTROL 

64.010 Definitions 
For the purposes of this chapter, the following words shall have the following meanings: 

"Applicant" means the owner of real property or the owner's authorized agent. "Applicant" includes 
any person who would be required to obtain a Polk County permit or exemption approval, but who 
neglects or otherwise fails to do so. 

"Authorized agent" means the developer, architect, contractor, engineer, builder, personal 
representative, or anyone designated by the owner to have control or supervision of a site involving 
construction site activity. 

"Common plan of development" means a contiguous construction project or projects where multiple 
separate and distinct construction activities may be taking place at different times on different 
schedules but under one plan. 

"Construction site" means a location where a Polk County land use or building permit or exemption 
approval is required. 

"Construction site activity" means any ground disturbing activities at a location where a Polk 
County permit or exemption approval is required. 

"Director" means the director of the Polk County department of public works or the director's 
designee. 

"Emergency" has the same meaning as found in ORS 401.025. 

"Erosion" means the wearing away of the ground surface, or the movement, detachment or 
dislocation and transport of sediment including soil particles by the action of water or wind. 

"Exemption approval" means an exemption from the requirement to obtain a building permit for an 
agricultural building. 

"Final stabilization" is determined by satisfying the following criteria: (1) there is no reasonable 
potential for discharge of a significant amount of construction related sediment or turbidity to 
surface waters; (2) construction materials and waste have been removed and disposed of properly. 
This includes any sediment that was being retained by temporary erosion and sediment controls; (3) 
all temporary erosion and sediment controls have been removed and disposed of properly, unless 
doing so conflicts with local requirements; (4) all ground disturbing activities have stopped and all 
stormwater discharges from construction activities that are authorized by this permit have ceased; 
(5) all disturbed or exposed areas of the site are covered by either final vegetative stabilization or
permanent stabilization measures. However, temporary or permanent stabilization measures are not
required for areas that are intended to be left unvegetated or unstabilized following construction
(such as dirt access roads, utility pole pads, areas being used for storage of vehicles, equipment, or

Exhibit A



64-2

materials); provided, that measures are in place to eliminate or minimize erosion. 

"Ground disturbing activities" means any activity that exposes soil, including, but not limited to, 
construction, landscaping, removal of vegetation, stockpiling of soil or construction debris, grading, 
excavating, filling, clearing, trenching, drilling, transport or fill, or utility work, or working of land 
at a particular location. 

"Nonresidential development" means a development in which living units are not included or 
individual living units are not separately owned. 

"Operations and maintenance manual" means a written document containing policies and 
procedures related to the operation, maintenance, repair and replacement requirements for all 
structural, vegetative, and management practices installed and relating to stormwater control 
systems for a development described in the Polk County Storm Water Management Program 
(SWMP). 

"Public storm drainage and surface water system" means natural or manmade drainage courses for 
the conveyance of surface water. 

"Residential development' means a development in which individual living units are separately 
owned. 

"Sediment" means finely divided loose material that can be suspended and transported in water or 
air and may originate from disturbed soil, landscaping, or construction activities or materials.  

"Storm event" means a storm event (as defined at 40 CFR 122.21 (g)(7)(ii)) with greater than 0.1 
inch of rainfall and at least 72 hours after the previously measurable storm event with greater than 
0.1 inch of rainfall. 

"Stormwater management area" means an area designated as a stormwater management area by the 
Department of Environmental Quality under Polk County jurisdiction. 

"Stormwater treatment facilities" means a storm collection and conveyance system, operated and 
maintained by the county or by a private property owner, located outside the building envelope 
which serves one or multiple building storm drains, catch basins, area drains, or other drainage 
facilities. 

(Construction Erosion and Sediment Control) 

60.015 Purpose 
The purpose of this chapter is to minimize the amount of sediment reaching waterways, wetlands, 
and the public storm drainage and surface water system for the duration of construction site 
activities, which complies with Phase II of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NP-DES), a federal permit that requires the operator of a Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems 
(MS4) to implement Best Management Practices (BMPs) to prevent construction site runoff 

64.020 Permit Required 
An erosion prevention and sediment control permit is required inside a stormwater management 
area if construction site activity(ies) will expose at least one quarter of an acre (10,890 square feet) 

Exhibit A



64-3

of soil, either in isolation or as part of a common plan of development. 

64.030 Erosion Prevention and Sediment Control Plan 
(1) An erosion prevention and sediment control plan with a certified engineer stamp is required
for all erosion prevention and sediment control permits. The plan must be submitted by the
applicant and approved by the director for issuance of the erosion prevention and sediment control
permit, prior to the issuance of Polk County permit of exemption approval and commencement of
ground disturbing activities. The plan must contain protection techniques that will eliminate runoff
situation created from the construction activity both during and after construction. Site-specific
considerations shall be incorporated.

(2) The erosion prevention and sediment control plan must include sizing criteria, performance
criteria, design specifications, guidance on selection and placement of controls, and specifications
for long-term operation and maintenance, including appropriate inspection intervals and a self-
inspection checklist.

(3) The county may require that the applicant design and construct a temporary drainage system
that will ensure any off-site impacts caused by the construction site activity can be mitigated.

(4) The Polk County department of public works may perform inspections to ensure compliance
with this chapter at the discretion of the director.

(5) The erosion prevention and sediment control plan is required to be kept on site and available
for review by inspectors.

(6) The erosion prevention and sediment control plan must include clear steps for project phase
completion, final stabilization, and permit closure.

64.040 Permit Fee 
The county may establish a fee for review of plans and inspections required by this chapter by order 
of the board of commissioners. The board of commissioners shall set the fee to recover the public 
works department costs of providing an applicant's erosion prevention and sediment control permit, 
inspections, and plan review. 

64.050 Construction Site Deposits on Public Streets and into Storm Drains 
No person shall cause or allow visible and measurable erosion or sediment related to construction 
site activity inside a stormwater management area as defined herein to enter the public storm 
drainage and surface water system. Any person causing visible and measurable erosion or sediment 
shall immediately abate or remove it. The removal shall be accomplished by hand labor or approved 
mechanical means. 

64.060 Maintenance 
(1) The applicant shall maintain all erosion and sediment control measures in proper
functioning order for the duration of the ground disturbing activities or until adequate ground cover
has been established.

(2) The applicant shall inspect, maintain, adjust, repair, and replace erosion and sediment
control measures as necessary within 24 hours following a storm event to ensure that the measures
are functioning properly.

Exhibit A



64-4

(3) During active ground disturbing activity, the applicant shall inspect and maintain erosion
and sediment control measures weekly or within 24 hours of a storm event.

(4) The erosion prevention and sediment control plan must be maintained and updated as site
conditions change, to prevent sediment or pollutant contaminated water from leaving the site.

(5) Permit finalization requires one of the following to be achieved:

(a) Individual lots or phases of a qualifying common plan of development obtain individual
erosion prevention and sediment control permit coverage prior to the issuance of Polk County 
permit(s) or exemption approval(s). The director shall be notified of sale of individual lots or phases 
of a common plan of development no less than 14 calendar days prior to the date of closing. Until 
such time as an individual erosion prevention and sediment control permit is obtained, the lot or 
phases sold shall continue to be the responsibility of the overall development's erosion prevention 
and sediment control permit. 

(b) Final stabilization.

64.070  Falsifying Information 
No person shall knowingly make any false statement, representation, or certification in any 
application, record, report, plan, or other document filed or required to be maintained pursuant to 
this chapter. 

64.080 Stop Work Orders 

(1) In the event there is a violation of this chapter and it is necessary to obtain compliance with
this chapter, the director may issue a stop work order requiring that all work, except work directly
related to the elimination of the violation, be immediately and completely stopped. If the director
issues a stop work order, the applicant shall not resume work until such time as the director gives
specific approval in writing. The stop work order shall include:

(a) The date of the stop work order;

(b) The erosion prevention and sediment control permit and/or permit or exemption
approval number if applicable;

(c) The site address, legal description or location applicable to the stop work order;

(d) A description of all violations; and

(e) The conditions under which the work may resume.

(2) The stop work order shall be in writing and posted in a conspicuous location at the site.
Other means of communication of the stop work order may be exercised in the discretion of the
director.

(3) No person may remove, obscure, mutilate or otherwise damage a stop work order.

Exhibit A



64-5

(4) A stop work order shall be effective upon posting or upon verbal delivery under subsection
(5) of this section.

(5) When an emergency condition exists, the director may issue a stop work order verbally. A
written stop work order shall be posted in a conspicuous location at the site within 24 hours of the
verbal order.

(Post Construction Runoff Control) 

64.100  Purpose 
The purpose PCCO 64.100-64.250 is to reduce pollutants in and quantity of stormwater reaching 
waterways, wetlands, and the public storm drainage and surface water system generated after the 
completion of development improvements in a stormwater management area as denned by the 
Oregon Department of Environmental Quality. 

64.110  Engineering Standards 
The stormwater quality treatment standards applicable to developed sites under PCCO 64.100-
64.250 shall be the City of Salem Department of Public Works Standard Drawings, and they shall 
specify exactly what kinds of permanent stormwater treatment facilities are required (if any) for a 
developed site. 

64.120  Permit Required 
(1) The City of Salem Department of Public Works Standard Drawings shall establish under
what circumstances an on-site stormwater drainage permit is required inside a stormwater
management area. The permit shall require an applicant to install any applicable stormwater
treatment facilities as required by the City of Salem Department of Public Works Standard
Drawings effect on the date of the applicant's application for a Polk County land use or building
permit or exemption approval.

(2) The permit shall include an operation and maintenance manual. For commercial or
residential development, the applicant shall prepare the manual. For a single-family residence with a
stormwater treatment facility that serves the residence exclusively, the county shall supply the
manual and document to be recorded with the County Clerk.

64.130  On-Site Stormwater Drainage Plan 

(1) An on-site stormwater drainage plan is required for all on-site stormwater drainage permits.
The plan must be submitted by the applicant and approved by the director for issuance of the on-site
stormwater drainage permit, prior to the issuance of a Polk County land use or building permit or
exemption approval and commencement of work at the construction site. The plan must contain
protection techniques that will eliminate runoff situation created after the completion of the
development, Site-specific considerations shall be incorporated.

(2) If landscaping is part of the stormwater treatment facilities, then the applicant must prepare
and submit for approval with the on-site stormwater drainage plan a detailed plan for management
of vegetation at the site after construction, which shall be attached to the maintenance agreement
and the operations and maintenance manual. The plan shall include a description of what practices
will be employed to ensure that adequate vegetation cover is preserved.

Exhibit A



64-6

(3) The department of public works shall perform at least one inspection of stormwater
treatment facilities required under an on-site stormwater drainage permit during installation to
ensure compliance with this chapter and the permit. The department of public works shall perform
at least one inspection of stormwater treatment facilities required under an on-site stormwater
drainage permit shortly after completion of installation to ensure compliance with this chapter and
the permit.

64.140 Maintenance Responsibility 

(1) Unless otherwise approved by the county, Polk County shall maintain stormwater treatment
facilities serving residential development or public rights-of-way created pursuant to a development
application submitted after the effective date of the ordinance codified in this chapter. Polk County
shall not maintain stormwater treatment facilities which serve a single-family residence exclusively.

(2) The owner of property containing stormwater treatment facilities maintained by Polk
County pursuant to subsection (1) of this section shall execute a surface and stormwater
management easement and a stormwater treatment facility access easement to Polk County in a
form sufficient to the County.

(3) Unless otherwise approved by the county, the applicant for a development creating multiple
parcels intended for separate ownership shall enclose the stormwater treatment facilities maintained
by Polk County pursuant to subsection (1) of this section in a separate tract, if doing so is consistent
with the minimum lot size standards for the applicable zone.

64.150 Maintenance Agreement 

(1) An applicant for a nonresidential development or a single-family residence with a
stormwater treatment facility that serves the residence exclusively which is required to obtain an on-
site stormwater drainage permit shall execute a maintenance agreement in a form acceptable to
Polk County to ensure that the stormwater treatment facilities function consistently with the City of
Salem Department of Public Works Standard Drawings in effect on the date of the applicant's
application for a Polk County land use or building permit or exemption approval. This agreement
will:

(a) Authorize Polk County public works staff to access the stormwater treatment
facilities at the site for the purpose of inspection to ensure continued compliance with the City of 
Salem Department of Public Works Standard Drawings in effect on the date of the applicant's 
application for a Polk County land use or building permit or exemption approval. 

(b) For a nonresidential development, require the current owner to have an operations
and maintenance manual available on site at all times. The current owner shall keep a record of 
maintenance and repairs for the last five years, which shall be available for inspection at a 
reasonable time and in a reasonable manner by Polk County public works staff. 

(c) Expressly run with the land and be binding on applicant's successors and assigns.

(d) Authorize Polk County public works staff to enter the subject property in order to
make any repairs necessary, at the owner's expense, to restore the stormwater treatment facilities at 
the site to a condition consistent with the City of Salem Department of Public Works Standard 

Exhibit A



64-7

Drawings in effect on the date of the applicant's application for a Polk County land use or building 
permit or exemption approval in the event that the present condition of the stormwater treatment 
facilities poses an imminent threat to the public health, safety, or welfare. 

(2) After an applicant executes a maintenance agreement, the applicant shall record the
maintenance agreement in the Polk County real property deed records.

(3) Any violation of an executed maintenance agreement shall constitute a violation of this
chapter.

64.160 Notice of Violation 

(1) Whenever the director finds that a condition exists on an owner's property that constitutes a
violation of PCCO 64.100-64.250, the director may order compliance by written notice of violation
to the property owner. The notice may require without limitation:

(a) The performance of monitoring, analyses, and reporting;

(b) The maintenance of vegetation;

(c) The cessation of all violating discharges, practices, or operations;

(d) The abatement or remediation of stormwater pollution or contamination hazards and
the restoration of any affected property; and 

(e) The implementation of source control or treatment best management practices
directed by the director. 

(2) The notice shall:

(a) Describe the property by street address or tax lot number;

(b) Describe the nature of the violation;

(c) State by a date certain when the property owner must correct the violation in a
manner acceptable to the director; 

(d) Inform the owner that if the violation is not corrected the county shall either
complete the repairs, seek to compel abatement or cite the owner, as appropriate; 

(e) Inform the property owner that if the county performs the necessary abatement or
repairs, the county will bill the property owner for the costs; 

(f) Include an estimate of the costs anticipated for this county to abate or repair the
violation; 

(g) Inform the property owner that failure to pay the county for its costs to correct the
violation may result in filing of a lien on the property; 

Exhibit A



64-8

(h) Inform the property owner of the rights spelled out in PCCO 64.190-64.220,
including the right to a hearing, and individuals the property owner may contact for additional 
information. 

(3) The notice shall be served on the property owner by any means to reasonably apprise the
owner of the violation, including but not limited to personal service, or first class mail to the address
of record within the County.

(4) If a stormwater treatment facility is maintained by the county, the owner is not responsible
for violations of this chapter other than violations caused by the owner.

64.170  Abatement and/or Repair of Violation 
If the property owner has not corrected the violation as directed within the time allowed in the 
notice given pursuant to PCCO 64.160 the director may take all measures necessary to abate the 
violation and/or restore the property. The director or persons authorized by the director may enter 
upon property to abate and/or restore the property upon obtaining consent of the property owner or 
through a court issued warrant. 

64.180 Emergency Abatement 
The director is authorized to require immediate abatement of any violation of this chapter that 
constitutes an immediate threat to the health, safety or well-being of the public. The director or 
persons authorized by the director may enter upon property to abate and/or restore the property upon 
obtaining consent of the property owner or through a court-issued warrant. 

64.190  Collection of Costs 

(1) The county may collect all costs associated with the repair or abatement of a violation, or
both, from the property owner.

(2) The county shall keep detailed records of all costs associated with the abatement or repair
due to a violation of this chapter.

(3) Upon completion of the abatement or repair of the violation by the county, a notice of final
costs shall be served on the owner by personal serve consistent with 64.160(3) Payment must be
made within 30 days from the date of the notice of final costs. The notice must contain the
following:

(a) The total cost of repair or abatement, or both;

(b) A statement that the total cost may be filed as a lien with the county clerk unless
paid within 60 days from the date of the hearings officer's order described in PCCO 64.220 

(c) A statement that the owner may contest the charges at a hearing that will be
scheduled on the matter pursuant to PCCO 64.220 

64.200  Hearing Request 
A property owner who is served with a notice of violation as described in PCCO 64.160 may 
request a hearing before the Polk County hearings officer. Hearing requests must bs filed in writing 
with the Polk County hearings officer within five business days from the date the notice was served. 

Exhibit A



64-9

64.210  Hearing on Notice of Violation 

(1) Upon receiving a written request for a hearing pursuant to PCC 64.200, the hearings officer
shall set a time and place for a hearing that shall be no more than seven days from the date of filing
of the hearing request, or as soon as practicable. The hearings officer shall notify the person
requesting a hearing of the time and date of the hearing. The director shall appear and present
evidence pertinent to the alleged violation and its abatement or repair. The owner of the property
may also present evidence before the hearings officer pertinent to the alleged violation and its
abatement or repair. The county shall have the burden of proving by a preponderance of the
evidence that a violation exists and must be abated or repaired.

(2) Failure of the person requesting hearing to appear shall constitute a waiver of the right to
present evidence at the hearing or thereafter.

(3) After the hearing, the hearings officer shall issue an order containing findings as to whether
the alleged violation does in fact exist, the extent to which the violation exists and (if abatement or
repair is required) shall set a date for abatement or repair to be accomplished by the owner. The
hearings officer's order shall be issued within 10 days of the date of the hearing eras soon as
practicable.

(4) The decision of the hearings officer is final. Appeal shall be only by writ of review under
ORS Chapter 34.

64.220 Hearing on Final Costs 

(1) At the time the notice of final costs is sent to the property owner as described in PCCO
64.190, a copy shall also be sent to the hearings officer. The hearings officer shall set a time and
place for a hearing that shall be no more than seven days from the date of receipt of the notice of
final costs by the hearings officer, or as soon as practicable. The hearings officer shall notify the
property owner and the director of the time and date of the hearing. The only issue at the hearing
shall be the reasonableness of the cost of abatement or repairs.

(2) Failure of the property owner to appear shall constitute a waiver of the right to present
evidence at the hearing or thereafter.

(3) After the hearing, the hearings officer shall issue an order within 10 days of the date of the
hearing, or as soon as practicable, detailing the amount of the final costs that the owner must pay, if
any. The hearings officer's order shall also indicate that the final costs must be paid within 30 days
and if they are not paid within 60 days the county may record a lien in the county clerk lien record.

(4) The hearings officer's order of determination shall be final and binding. Appeal shall be only
by writ of review under ORS Chapter 34.

64.230  Lien Filing Record 
If final costs are not paid within 60 days of the hearings officer's order requiring payment of final 
costs, the enforcement officer shall record a lien with the Polk County clerk or any other county 
clerk of this state. The total amount of final costs shall be recorded as a lien in the county clerk lien 
record. The lien provided for herein shall be foreclosed in the manner prescribed by state law for the 

Exhibit A



64-10

enforcement of liens. Nothing in this section precludes the county from taking other action to collect 
the final costs. 

64.240  Enforcement 

(1) Enforcement of citations under this chapter shall be pursuant to PCCO chapter 50.  The
Public Works Director or their designee is hereby authorized to act as an enforcement officer under
this chapter pursuant to PCCO 50.025.

(2) Any person cited for a violation of this chapter shall be subject to a fine of not more than
$500.00 for a noncontinuing violation and a fine of not more than $1 ,000 for a continuing violation.
Each day that this chapter is violated shall constitute a separate violation.

(3) The provisions of this chapter are in addition to and not in lieu of any other procedures and
remedies provided by law or Ordinance, including equitable relief and damages.

64.250  Fees 
The board of commissioners may adopt fees necessary to support the stormwater program by board 
order. 

Cross References: 
PCCO Chapter 50 - Enforcement 

Exhibit A



ATTACHMENT A

Ordinance 23-03
Findings in Support of Legislative Amendment (LA) 23-02

III. CRITERIA F'OR LEGISLATIVE AMENDMENTS

A legislative amendment to the text of the PCZO may be approved.provided that tbe reque$ il^
base[ on substantive information and factual basis to support the change. In amending the PCZO,
Polk County shall demonstrate compliance with PCZO t 1S.O0O. The applicable review and decision
criteria are listed in bold, followed by staff s analysis and findings.

1. AMENDING THE TEXT OF THE POLK COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE.

(A) [ORS 197.612(l)] An amendment to the text of the Polk County. ZoningOrdinance
iolely for the friipose of conforming the ordinance to new requirements in a land
use statute, statewide land use planning goal or rule of the Land Conservation and
Development Commission implementing the statutes or goals may be made
without holding a public hearing when:

(1) Polk Counfy gives notice to the Oregon Department of Land Conservation
and Develoirment of the proposed change in the manner provided by ORS
197.610 and 197.615;

(2) The Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development-confirms in
writing that the only effect of the proposed change is to conform the Polk
County ZoningOrdinance to the new requirementsl and

(3) The Planning Division provides notice of the proposed change to the
Planning Commission.

An amendment to the text of the Polk County ZoningOrdinance under the
provisions of subsection (A) of this section shall be considered a ministerial
decision and not a land use action. Amendments under subsection (A) of this
section need only be adopted on the Board of Commissioner's Consent agenda.

All amendments to the text of the Polk County Zoning Ordinance that are not
included in subsection (A) of the section shall be processed under the procedures
and criteria for a legislative comprehensive plan amendment described in Chapter
1r5.

(B)

(c)

Staff Findings: The proposed text amendments are intended to bring PQZO Chapter 136 into 
.

cgtrl$rmance with State law where required, and to evaluate and consider adop_ting optional changes

for uses that could be permitted in the EFIJ Zoning District. While a po{i_on of these text
amendments are included under subsection (A) of this criteria, not all of the changes are for the
pulpose of conformingPCZO Chapter 136 to new. requirements found in Oregon Revised Statutes,

btatewide Planning G6als, or Oregbn Administrative Rules, but rather to consideradopting optional
changes. Therefor6, staff has deteimined that the proposed text amendments shall be processed

undeithe procedures and criteria for a legislative comprehensive plan amendment described in
PCZO Chapter 115.

The Polk County Board of Commissioners initiated this legislative amendment process on April 1 1,

2023 . Staff sent notice of the proposed text amendments to the Oregon Department of Land and

Conservation Development (DLe D) on June I 3, 2023 . Staff sent notice of the Planning-
Commission Public Hearing'to all interested parties on June 28,2023,20 {ayq priorto thetrearing.
Notice of the Planning Commission public hearing was also published in_the June28,2023
publication of the Iteilized Observei newspaper and was posted onlhe Planning Divisjon page. of
tn" pott County website on June 28,2023. Pursuant toPCZO 115.040, the Planning Commission
conducted a public hearing on July 18,2023 and made a recommendation to the Board of
Commissionbrs to adopt siaff s rebommendation of the proposed amendments to PCZO Chapter

Board of Commissioners Memo (8-30-2023)



ATTACHMENT A

136. Staff sent notice of the September 6,2023 Board of Commissioners puQli,c hearing to all
interested parties on August 16,2023,20 days prior to the hearing. No-tlce ott_l.r. Board of
Commissioners public hiaring was also published in the August 16, 2023 publication of the
Itemized Obserier newspapeiand was posted on the Planning Division page of the Polk County
website on August 16,2023.

Planning Staff received two (2) public comments from citizens after the staff recommendation was

issued, 6ut prior to the Planning-Commission public hearing. These comments are included as

Attachments B-1 and B-2.

In the first public comment received, a citizenencouraged Polk County to "further strengthen the
provisions ior home occupations and commercial activities in conjunction with farm use to avoid
'tne 

kind of nonfarm related businesses and large events that have been approved under these
provisions in Marion, Yamhill and other Oregon counties." However, these comments did not
include any specific suggestions to "further sirengthen" those provisions. These comments also

expressed support for staff s recommendation to not adopt the optional changes for temporary
m6dical hardship dwellings, aerial fireworks businesses, and agri-tourism.

These comments were provided to the Planning Commission and were discussed by the Planning
Commission in the July 18,2023 public hearing. As discussed, the Planning Commission concurred
with staffls recommendation and iecommended that the Board of Commissioners adopt the
proposed text amendments toPCZO Chapter 136. Since the Planning Commission public h.earjng,

itaffhas made some further changes to tlie proposed text amendments that did not substantively
change the Planning Commission-s recommendation but were rather intended to correct any.

gram"matical, typogiaphical, formatting, or other effors. The proposed text amendments are included
as Attachment A.

In the second public comment received, a citizen raised concerns regarding Planning Slaff s - ..
procedure for providing the public with notice of the July 18, 2023 Plannng Commission public 

.

Learing and th^e ability to su6mit comments for the applicallgn. Specifically,-t!1e comments provided
indicaied that Plannirig Staff listed July 7,2023 as tlie deadline to submit public comments, which
was I I days prior to tfie hearing, and prior to the publishing of the Staff Report.. The comments
further inciicite that this inhibiGd citi2eninvolvement and was not consistent with the spirit of
Oregon Statewide Planning Goal No. 1. Staff believes that this citizen misinlerpreted the language
found in the public notice form that was sent on June 28,2023, which stated:

6'Written comments received by 5:00 PM on July 7,2023 will be included in the staff
report to the Planning Commission. Comments received after this timeo but prior to the
hearingn will be provided to the Planning Commission at the hearing."

Because the Staff Report and recommendation are required to be available for inspection^at.least
seven (7) days prior tb the public hearing, pursuant to PCZO 1 1 1.340(G), the- July 7,?9?3.d"tg 

.

listed onthe-public notice form was merily a deadline for public comments that would be included
in the Staff Report and recommendation, not a deadline forpublic comments or citizen
involvement. The pu{pose of this deadline is to provide staff adequate time to_ address thg^n^ublic

comments. fne puUtii notice clearly indicated that any comments received after July 7,2023 but
prior to the hearing would be provided to the Planning C_ommission at the hearing..In this.case, ltaff
irrovided the Planiing Commission with the two (2) public comments that were_submitted after July
i , 2023 , but prior to ihe hearing on July I8, 2023 , which were received by the Plannlng
iommissiorand considered as part of their recommendation to the Board of Commissioners.

The comments provided further state:

"The significant failure is not having a'Hearing LA23-02 Sign-ups S-heet for Interested
CitizenJ' in Hearing room, for the Record, and,to 'make-up appeal rules'that a "decision
maker has to have in opportunity to respond", OR, aCitizen can't file a LUEA appeal on'that
issue'...(from today's Hearing?) It's not good to mix Planning Hearing rules & a

2Board of Commissioners Memo (8-30-2023)



ATTACHMENT A

General Findings: ORS 197.646 states that when new land use statutes, statewide land use planning
the enacted, counties must either adopt

Recommendation, with later BOC decisions, as it's confusing, and, does not help Citizens
Involvement Goals."

Staff understands these comments to be raising concems about appropriate sign-up sheets not being
available for the public hearing, and the ability to present teslimony to the Ptalnjng Commission or
the Board of Commissioners. A sign-up sheeifor public testimony was provided at the Planning
Commission public hearing. No puUlif testimony was received during the Planning.Commission
hearing and there were no members from the public in attendance. As discussed, this comment was

providEd to the Planning Commission duringlhe July 18,2023_public hearing,. and was considered
hr purt of the Planning eommission's recommendation to the Board of Commissioners. The record
is dtill open and any c-omments received prior to the September 6,2023 public hearing, qr qny
testimony received during the public heaiing, will be considered by the Board of Commissioners in
their decision.

The Planning Commission found that the public notice form for the Planning Commission public 
.

hearing that"was sent to all interested parties, published in the ltemized Observer,newspap_er, and the
Polk C-ounty website complied with all publichearing notification requirements listed in PCZO
111.340, 111.350, and 111.370.

Staff s findings to address the criteria listed inPCZO 1 15.060 are provided below.

2. Compliance with Oregon Revised Statutes, and the statewide nJanning goals and_-related

admihistrative rules. If an exception to one or more of the goals is necessary' Polk C_ou_nty

shall adopt findings which address the exception criteria in Oregon Administrative Rules,
Chapter 660, Division 4; IPCZO 115.060(,4.)l

(B) A local government shall amend its acknowledged comprehensive plan or
acknowl-edged regional framework plan and land use regulations implemgltryg
either plan by a silf-initiated post-aiknowledgment process under ORS 197.610 to
197.625 to comply with a new-requirement in land use statutes, statewide land use
planning goah bi rules implementing the statutes or the goals. [ORS 197.646(l)l

(C) When a local government does not adopt amendments to an acknowledged
comprehensive plan, an acknowledged regional framework plan or land use
reguiations impiementing either plan, as required by subsection (1) of th_is s.ection,
th6 new requiiements apply directly to the local government's land use decisions.
The failure to adopt amendments to an acknowledged comprehensive plan, an
acknowledged regional framework plan or land use regulations implementing
either plan requiied by subsection (1) of this section is a basis for initiation of
enforcement action pursuant to ORS 197.319 to 197.335. IORS 197 .646(3)]

goals or rules
amendments to local code
directly to land use applications. Cunently

directly to land use applications.and OAR
adopted by the local government but rather

law.

statutes or the goals are
to implement the change s to State law or apply those changes

, the Planning Division applies certain sections of ORS
Some changes in State law are not mandated to be
allow the local government the opportunity to be more

restrictive than State

OAR Chapter 660 Division 33 pertains to agricultural lands and the administrative rules that govern

land uses ihat are consistent with Oregon Statewide Planning Goal 3. ORS 215.283 pertains to uses

that may be allowed in the EFU zone. This text amendment is intended to add the-changes found in
OAR Cirapter 660 Division 33 and ORS 215.283 to the PCZO where.required and/or permitted by
the State. Many of these changes are not substantive but are rather minor chan^ges intended to add

the language found in State lair,r verbatim to the PCZO.In other cases, some of the changes.would
add additidnal provisions that have not been adopted by the County but have been applied directly
to land use appiications, as required by law. Because these required changes are not substantive but

-)Board of Commissioners Memo (8-30-2023)



ATTACHMENT A

rather for the sake of conformance, staff will not review these changes in this report. The full text
amendment with all changes can be found in Attachment A'

This report will be primarily concentrated on the evaluation of the.changes found in OAR Chapter

660 Division 33 anb ORS il5.283(2) that are not required to be adopted by the County, but.are

optional and allow local governments to be more resirictive than State law. Due to changes in State

law, Chapter 136 is curre-ntly more restrictive than or differentiates from State law in its regulation

of some lund u."r that may 6e allowed in the EFU zone. As part of this_pro_ce1> the Board of
Commissioners could adoft the optional text amendments as proposed by Staff, adopt those text
amendments with further iestrictions, or choose to not adopt those text amendments. These changes

will be referred to in this report as "optional changes," and are discussed in fuither detail below
along with stafls recommendation for each change.

In other sases, there have been changes in State law to optional uses listed under ORS 215'283(2)
which have resulted in the PCZO b.ing less restrictive in some sections. Although these uses are

optional, the changes are required to be added to the PCZO in order to continue to be in compliance

*it6 Stui. law. Thise chang^es will be referred to in this report as "mandatory changes," and are

discussed in further detail below.

Aquaculture: Mandatory Change

PCZO 136.050(8) currently permits the propagation,,cultivation, maintenanc.e and harvesting of
aquatic species, subject to fir6 review and apploya!of 3 condjtio_nal _rpe pgrgi!.^Aquaculture is

uritfro.ir"'a by tire Siate pursuant to ORS 215.283(2Xp) and OAR 660-033-0130Q7). Changes to the

ORS and OAR have revised the evaluation standards for aquaculture to specify that aquaculture
shall only include aquatic species that are not under the jurisdiction of the State Fish and Wildlife
Commission or inseit species. Based on these changes, PCZO 136.050(8) could be interpreted as

being less restrictive thin State law, therefore, staff finds that this text amendment is a mandatory
change.

Tem Medical Hardshio llinss Optional Change

Procedure for Temnorarv Medical n Dwellinss

The Planning Division currently authorizes manufactured dwellings that were used as a temporary
medical hard"ship dwelling to be "removed" by converting them-to an approved nonresidential use.

In some instances, this pr6cess requires the pioperty owner to obtain_a change of use building
permit from the Pok Cbunty Building Division-, which includes final inspections to be completed
by the Building Ofhcial. Inbther inst6nces, this process could require the property owner to obtain
pianning authirization to use the manufactured <iwelling for an approved use ratherthan physically
iemovirig it from the property. For example, a property gwner could submit an application with the

Planning"Division to iec6rtify a manufac^tured lw6lling for the use_of a temporary medical hardship

dwellin[ rather than removing it from the subject prope{V within three months of the end of the

hardshii. This process is inteided to limit the burdens placed 9l thg property owner while still
conforming to ihe provisions in State law. For this reasbn, staff and the Planning Commission
recommend not adopting this text amendment.

Mandatory Change

State law indicates that temporary medical hardship dwellings should be processed under a
conditional use review, as this use is listed under ORS 215.283(2). As discussed above, temporary

Board of Commissioners Memo (8-30-2023) 4



ATTACHMENT A

medical hardship dwellings are currently processed through an administrative review. Staff
currently appliei the general review stand-ards listed under PCZO 136.060 to all conditional use

applications. The purlose of this criteria is to ensure that the proposal would not force a-significant
.it'*ge or signific^antiy increase the cost of accepted farm or forest practicgl 91 surrounding lands

devoled to 6rm or foiest use. While staff does not currently apply PCZO 136.060 directly to
applications for temporary medical hardship dwellings, staff applies similar standards listed under
t:'A.O+OG)(5) and 16;, whicfr state "The dwelling will not force a_significant change in accepted
farm or ioidsf practices on suffounding lands devoted to farm or forest use;" an{ "Thedwe^lling will
not significantiy increase the cost of accepted farm or forestpractices on lands devoted to farm or
foresiuse." Foithis reason, changing this process from administrative review to a conditional use

review would not alter stafi's eviluation for a temporary medical hardship dwelling, rather it would
merely change where the criteria derives from. This amendment would change this ap^plicatt_"-t^tq-
a TypL A not-ification procedure to a Type B notification procedure, as specified. inPCZO n|.240'
This^would require staff to send notice of a complete application to all neighboring property owners
located withini 750 foot buffer surrounding the. subjeCt property prior to the issuance of the

decision. Because this change would be required, staff began processing temporary medical
hardship dwellings in the EFU zone under a Type B procedure earlier this year. Based on the

information discrissed above, staff finds that this texf amendment is a mandatory change. Since the
Planning Commission public hearing, staff has made some further changes to the recommended text
amendrients that did nbt substantively change the recommendation but were rather intended to
correct some typographical and formatting errors. As discussed, the proposed text amendments to
PCZO Chapter 136 are included as Attachment A.

Home Occupations: Optional Change

PCZO 136.050(K) currently permits home occupations that are operated by a resident of the
property in whiitrthe business in located, subjeCt to review and approv{9tg^c-onditional use

irermit.-Home occupations are authorized by.the State pursuant to ORS 215.283(2XD, ORS.

2t5.q+t, and OAR^660-003-0130(14). State law currently authorizes home occupations to. be

operated by a resident or an employee of a resident of the property on which the business in located.

Under the current criteria listed inPCZO 136.050(K), home occupations must be operated by a
resident of the property in which the business is located, but mayemploy up_to hve (5) employecs.
This proposed im6ndrirent would authorize home occupations to be operated by an employee of the

resid6nt, although, could not result in any additional employees and would not perm_it any uses or a
size and scale tliat could not otherwise bb permitted under the current criteria. Based on this
information, staff finds that PCZO 136.050(K) could be interpreted as being more restrictive than
State law. For these reasons, staff and the Pianning Commission recommend adopting the proposed
text amendment, as shown in Attachment A.

Commercial Dog Kennels. Training Classes or Testing Trials: Optional Change

PCZO 136.050(L) currently permits dog kennels, as definedby PCZO 110_.301, on land not
classified as high-value farmiand, subjeit to review and approval of a conditional us_e permit.
Commercial Dog Kennels, Training Classes or Testing Trials are authorized.by the State pursuant to
oRS 215.283(2)(n) and OAR 660-033-0120, Table 1. Changes to State law have removed
restrictions on hilti-value farmland and now authorize this use on any land in the EFU zone. State

law also authoriz-es training classes or testing trials under this section that cannot otherwise be

authorized under PCZO 136.040(U).

Under the current PCZO criteria, commercial dog kennels cannot be permitted on land classified as

high-value farmland. The proposed amendment *ould remove this restriction. This use would still
belubject to a conditionaiuse permit and the general review standards listed inPCZO 136.060.

Staff finds thatPCZO 136.050(L) is currentlyhore restrictive than State law, therefore, staff and

the Planning Commission recommend removing this restriction and adopting the proposed text
amendment, as shown in Attachment A.

5Board of Commissioners Memo (8-30-2023)



ATTACHMENT A

Aerial Fireworks Business: Optional Change

Polk County does not currently permit aerial fireworks businesses. ORS 215.283(2)(v) and OAR
660-033-01:O(f S) currently authorize an aerial fireworks display business that has been in
continuous operaiion at its 

-current 
location within an EFU zone since December 31, 1986, and

possesses a wholesaler's permit to sell or provide fireworks. If adopted, this use would be subject to
ieview and approval of a conditional use permit.

Staff is not aware of any existing aerial fireworks businesses located in the EFU zone of rural Polk
County. Because this ciiteria only authorizes pre-existing businesses, staff and the Planning
Commission find that this change would be unnecessary and recommend not adopting this text
amendment.

Eouine Theraoeutic Activities: Optional Change

Polk County does not currently permit equine therapeutic counseling activities. In 2018, Senate Bill
(SB) 1533 was passed by the State Legislature, whlch authorlzg.{ e.gylne and equine-affiliated
therapeutic and counseling activities, pursuant to ORS 215.283(2)(b-b) a^n{. OAR 660-03_3-0130(41).
Thes6 activities are required to be conducted in buildings that were lawfully constructed on the
property prior to January 1,2019, or in new buildings that are accessory, incidental, and subordinate
io the farm use on the tract. In addition, the individuals conducting the therapeutic or counseling
activities are required to be acting within the proper scope of any licenses_required by the State. If
adopted, this use would be subjeCt to review and approval of a conditional use permit.

The proposed amendment would permit equine therapeutic counseling activities but would not
resuft in any additional development that would not otherwise be permitted for farm use pursuant to
PCZO 136.030(4). The proposed use would also be subject to the general review standards listed
under PCZO 136.060. SAfffinds no reason to recommend any additional restrictions on the State

provisions pertaining to this use. For this reason, staff and the Planning Commission recommend
adopting this text amendment, as shown in Attachment A.

Mineral and Aggregate Operations: Optional Change

PCZO 136.050(Q)(2) currently permits the mining of aggregate and other mineral and subsurface
resources which ard included inihe County inveniory of mineral and aggregate resources when the
quantity of material proposed to be mined from the site is estimated to be 2,000,000 tons of
iggregit" material oi le-ss. In addition to mining, ORS 215.283(2)(bXB)^also authorizes the

cirishing and stockpiling of said aggregate and bther mineral and subsurface reso_urc^es,1ubje9t !o
ffining.Asiicuirentlyreads,stafffindsthatPCZo136.050(Q)(2)couldbe
interpreted as being more reitrictive than State law. For this reason, staff and the Planning
Commission recommend adopting this text amendment, as shown in Attachment A.

Solid Waste Disposal Site: Optional Change

PCZO 136.050(X) currently permits solid waste disposal sites on lands not classi{red as high-value
farmland, subject io review and approval of a condiiional use permit. Changes to State law now
authorize the maintenance, enhan-cbment, or expansion of existing facilities on high-value farmland
rhat are wholly within the EFU zone and on the tract in which the site is located Pgrir11lt]9. ORq 

.

215.283(2)(k) and OAR 660-033-0130(18)(a). As it reads, staff finds thatPCZO_1.36.050(X) could
be interpretbd as being more restrictive than State law. Staff fiqds that adopting this text amendment
would not result in any new facilities on high-value farmland. For these reasons, staff and the
Planning Commission recommend adopting this text amendment, as shown in Attachment A.

Commercial Power Generating Facilities: Optional Change

PCZO 136.050(Z) currently permits commercial power generating facilities, not including
commercial wirid'power generation facilities listed in PCZO 136.05O(AA),_subject to review and

approval of a conditional use permit. ORS 21 5.283(2)(9) and OAR 660-033-0130(17). and (22)
cirirently authorize this use and contain additional language which clarihes what specific.uses can

be incluled under this section. According to statute, commercial utility facilities are for the purpose

6Board of Commissioners Memo (8-30-2023)



ATTACHMENT A

of generating power for public use by sale, but do not include win{pgwgl generation facilities listed
inFCZO tf6.bSO(nA) or photovoltiic solar power generating facilities ljsted in ORS 215.283(9)
and OAR 660-033-0110(:g). However, if the area is high-value farmland, a commercial
photovoltaic solar power generation facility may be established as a commercial.utility facility as

irrovided in ORS itS.++1. A renewable energy facility as defined in ORS 215.446 may also be

established under this section.

Staff finds the proposed text amendment would not result in any additiorral uses that are not
otherwise perniittdO under the current ordinance, but would rathel c_lqify_the applicable review and

decision ciiteria for specific uses that may fall under PCZO 136.050(Z). To provide.clarity.as to.
what uses are subject to this criteria, staff and the Planning Commission recommend adopting this
text amendment, as shown in Attachment A.

Commercial Wind Power Generation Facilities: Optional Change

PCZO 136.050(A4) currently permits commercial wind power generation facilities that are

commercial utility facilities, as defined in ORS 2I5.446, for the purpqse of generating p_ory9r^ ryI^
public use by sale as described in OAR 660-033-0139Q7).ORS 215.2Si(Z)(e) and OAR 660-033-
bt:O(:Z) currently authorize this use and contain additional language which clarifies what specific
uses ianbe included under this section. In addition, State law includes separate criteria when
establishing this use on high-value farmland, arable lands, or non-arable lands. The proposed te.xt

amendmenl would include language requiring the applicant to demonstrate that they considered.
reasonable alternatives and polential negative impacts on agricultural operations conducted on the

subject property. The full list of criteria can be found in Attachment A of this report.

Staff finds the proposed text amendment would not result in any additional uses that are not
otherwise pe*iittda under the current ordinance, but would ralher_c]arify tE applicable review and

decision ciiteria for specific uses that may fall under PCZO 136.050(,4.4.). To provide parity with
State law, staff and the Planning Commission recommend adopting this text amendment, as shown
in Attachment A.

Photovoltaic Faci Mandatory Change

The PCZO does not currently contain specific language or criteria for commercial.photovoltaic
solar power generating facilities. Staff currently evaluates_this use under the criteria for commercial
powei generiting facilities listed inPCZO 136.050(2) and applies State law pe{{1i191o _ . .

photou6ltaic solir power generating facilities directly to land use applications. ORS 215'283(2)(9)
'una Onn 660-033-0130(tS) cunently authorize commercial photovoltaic solar power generating
facilities as a commerciai uiitity facility as defined in ORS 215.446 for the purpose of.generating 

.

power for public use by sale as-described in OAR 660-033-013.0(38). The specific review criteria is
-based 

on the soil types-of the property. On high-value farmland, the photovoltaic solar. power
generating facilitys-hall not uie, occupy, or cover more than 12 acres unless an exception to
Statewide Planning Goal 3 is granted. On arable farmland, the facility shall not use, occupy, or
cover more than 20 acres. On non-arable farmland, the facility shall not use, occupy, or cover more
than320 acres. The full list of review and decision criteria can found in Attachment A.

Staff finds that the proposed text amendment would not result in any additional uses that would not
otherwise be permittecf in the EFU zone. Currently, staff applies this criteria from State law directly^
to land use applications. Adopting the proposed text amendment would simply b9 for the purpose of
communicati.rg to property owneis and applicants the applicable review and decision criteria for
this use ratherThanreferencing State law. Staffhas not identified any issues that would warrant a

recommendation to be more restrictive than State law. For this reason, staff and the Planning
Commission recommend adopting this text amendment, as shown in Attachment A.

In addition to the changes discussed above, OAR 660-033-0130(38Xc_) and OAR 660-033-
0130(gXB) also author-ized counties to permit dual-use developmelt for b_oth photovoltaic solar
pow"i:li,neration facilities and farm use. Thisprovision was repealed on January 1,2022, therefore,
itafffinds that this provision is no longer applicable.

7Board of Commissioners Memo (8-30-2023)



ATTACHMENT A

Private Parks. Plav ds- Huntins and Fishins Preserves and Camosrounds Optional Change

PCZO 136.050(DD) currently permits private parks, playgrounds, hunting and fishing preserves and

campgrounds oir lands not cllsiified as high-valuefarmland, subject.to review an! approval of a 
.

con<iilional use permit. When the subject property is located within three miles o{qqqrpgn- glg$.h.
boundary, additional criteria listed in-PCZO tf O.O0S1al and (B) are applicable. ORS 215.283(2)(c)
and OAR 660-033-0130(19) currently authorize campgrounds for emergency purposes to support
natural hazardrecovery efforts and contain specific criteria pertaining to thos-e circumstances,
including, but not limiied to, the removal or conversion of the campground_after 36 months. PCZO
136.050(DD) cunently lists emergency purposes as a use permitted under this section but does not
list any the review and decision criteria found in State law for those circumstances.

Upon review of OAR 660-033-0130, there appears !q be two subsections labeled "(19)(a)"rvhich
pertain to private parks, playgrounds, hunting and fishing preserves a1{ campgrounds. Staff
identified'discrepincies betwien the two seciions, specifically, one of_the sections includes-specific
criteria for campgrounds that are for emergency purposes. It appears that the first section labeled
"(19)(a)" reflec'tJthe current text of PCZO t:O.OSO(OD), in addition to new provisions pertaining to
specini standards for private campgrounds established for emergency purposes. To provide parity

-ith State law, staff and the Planning Commission recommend adopting this text amendment, as

shown in Attachment A, which clarifies the criteria for private campgrounds for emergency
purposes.

Golf Courses and accessory uses: Mandatory Change

PCZO 136.050(FF) currently permits golf courses and accessory uses on a tract of land not
classified as high-value farmland, subject to review and approval of a conditional use permit. In
addition, existiig golf courses on all farmlands may be maintained, enhanced, or expanded, up to 36

holes onthe sam-eiract. ORS 215.283(2)(f and OAR 660-033-0130(20) currently restrict non-
regulation golf courses under this section, which are delned as a golf course or golf course-like
de-velopmeit that does not meet the State's definition of golf co-urse, including, but not limited to,
executive golf course, par three golf courses, pitch and putt golf courses, miniature golf courl-e.t: md
driving.uriges. Furthermore, State law contains specifiC language plrtaining.to accessoty facilities,
which-statei that food and beverage service facilities must be part of and incidentallo the operation
of the golf course and must be limited in size and orientation on the site to serve only the needs of
personi who patronize the golf course and their guests.

The proposed text amendment would clarify what uses ar9 n9t included to be permitted under this
sectibn.'As is reads, staff finds that the current text could be interpreted to be less restrictive than
State law, as it does not clarify that "non-regulation golf courses" are not permitted under this
section, nor does it define'onon-regulation gblf courses." In addition, the proposed text amendment
would clarify the manner in whiclifood and beverage facilities mqy b9 permitted when.accessory to
a golf course. As it reads, PCZO 136.050(FF) cguld be interpreted as bgtlg less restrictive than
Stlte law as it pertains to food and beverage facilities accessory to a golf course. For these reasons,

staff finds these text amendments to be mandatory.

Planning Staff received three (3) public comments after the Planning Commission public hearing
but prioi to the Board of Commissioners public hearing pertaining to the qroposed text amendments

to Golf Courses and accessory uses (see Attachments C-l through C-3). The comments provided
requested that additional language be added to this section to explicitly state that "non-regulation
goif conrses" include "frisbei, disc, or similar courses." The commentsprovided. acknowledge that
ilthough it may be implied that "frisbee, disc, or similar courses" would be considered "non-
regulation golf courses," this suggestion would help remove any amb^iguity and create a more
comprehensive description of what constitutes a "non-regulation golf course."

As discussed, the Board of Commissions may adopt provisions that are more restrictive than State

law. Because staff has no reason to believe that a frisbee, disc, or similar course would meet the

8Board of Commissioners Memo (8-30-2023)



ATTACHMENT A

definition of a "regulation" golf course, as currently used in PCZO 136.05-0(FF), staff finds that
adding the recomriended language would not be a substantive change to the Planning
Comriission's recommendati6n,-but could provide additional clarification as to what constitutes a

"non-regulation golf course. "
Schools: Mandatory Change

PCZO 136.050(II) currently permits new public or private schools on lands not classified as high -
value farmland, iricluding dliUuitdings essential to the operation of a school, forkindergarten
through grade 12 andpriirarily for residents of the rural area in which the school is located.

Cune"ntl!, schools located within three miles of an urban growth bogn{qy ry1y not be expanded 
.

beyond ihe requirements listed in PCZO 136.065(4) and (B), ORS ?15r?!:(?Xl4 turrently.permits
new schools on lands not classified as high-value farmland. OAR 660-033-0130(18) c_r4:rently

permits existing lawfully established schools that were formally allo^wed pursuant to ORS
2tS.ZtZ(t)(a) ir ORS 2i5.283(1Xa) as in effect before January !,29-10 to be expanded provide.d

that the dipansion complies wiifLiti the criteria listed in the OAR. C.halgqs to State law prohibits
the restrictions on the expansion of enclosed existing schools located within three miles of an urban
growth boundary to no longer be limited to lhg requirements listed inPCZO 136.065(4) and (B).
Ls it reads, staff finds thatPCZO 136.050(ID is cunently more restrictive than State law, w-he1e

State law specifies that local jurisdictions iannot be more restrictive. For this reason, staff finds
these text amendments to be mandatory.

The PCZO does not currently have specific criteria for child care facilities in the EFU zone'
Although, in the past, childcire facilities have been authorized in the EFU zone under the criteria
for a conditional .,r. ho*. occupation. ORS 2I5.283(2)(dd) currently authorizes child care facilities
when the facility would primarily be for the children of residents and workers of the rural area in
which the faciliiy or p.ogram would be located, and must be collocated with a community center or
a public or private school.

Adopting this text amendment would authorize childcare facilities in the EFU zone. a]lhguglt
childcarJfacilities may be established as a conditional use home occupation, they are limit:d to
establishment within an existing dwelling or structure that is normally associated with the EFU
zone. Adopting the proposed teit amendment would provide specilc criteria for childcare facilities
and could auth-orize^the construction of a new structure to support this use. As with home
occupations, childcare facilities would be subject t9 lhe review and approval of a conditional use

p.r-it, which includes compliance with PCZO 136.060. To provide clear parameters_regarding the
rnu.t.r"t in which childcare fbcilities can be authorized in the EFU zone, staff and the Planning
Commission recommend adopting this text amendment, as shown in Attachment A.

Aqri-Tourism and other Commercial Events: Optional Change

Polk County currently permits single-day agri-tourism and commercial events, subject to a
ministerial ieview, puriuant topCZO t j0.O;:O(n). Polk Counly also permits agri-tourism and other

commercial events 
^that 

are in conjunction with a permitted winery, cider business, or farm brewery,
or in conjunction with an existingfarm operation subject.to a co_nditional use.permit. ORS

2I5.2$(q(c) authorizes countiei to issue a limited use license.for upto six (6) agri-tourism or
other commeicial events in a calendar year that are in conjunction with an existing farm use.on a

tract. This license must be renewed every five (5) years. In addition, ORS 215.283 ,(4)(d) authorizes
counties to issue a limited use permit foi up to 18 agri-tourism or other commercial events in a
calendar year that are incidentil and subordinate to the existing commercial farm use on the subject
tract and 

-are 
necessary to support the commercial farm uses or the commercial agricultural . .

enterprises in the area. This iiermit must be renewed every five (5) years. Upon renewal of either a

licenie or permit, the county would need to determine whether.the agri-tourism is in compliance
with the piovisions listed in OnS 215.283(4)(c), which would include a cumulative.impacts analysis
to ensure that the agri-tourism, in combination with other agri-toqrism_ events or activities on
surrounding proper{ies, have not materially altered the stability of the land use pattern in the area'

Childcare Facilities: Optional Change

9Board of Commissioners Memo (8-30-2023)



These laws trace back to Oregon Senate Bill 960 in2011. Polk County has previously chosen not to

adopt all of the agri-tourism Jriteria from this bill due to concerns related to the multi-year license.

and'permit. Adop"ting this text amendment would authorize the issuance of multi-year licenses and

permits for agri-tourism and other commercial activities or events.

As discussed above, thePCZO currently authorizes agri-tourism and other commercial activities
and events in association with the following uses: commercial activity in conjunction with farm use

(7CZO 136.050(D, winery (PCZO 136.040(0)), cider business (PCZO 136.040(P)), and farm
brewery (PCZO 1 36.040(Q)).

Multi-year licenses and permits for agri-tourism and other commercial events associated with
wineries, cider business6s, and farm breweries are subject to the criteria listed under PCZO 117.090

andPCZO 117.100, respectively. In such cases, conditions of approval are_imposed to limit the
agri-tourism and other iommercial events to the size and scale that are evaluated and propo-sed as

pirt of th" administrative review process, and the licenses/permits must be renewed every five (5)

years.

Commercial activities in conjunction with farm use are subject to a conditional use review. In such

cases where agri-tourism and other events are pursued through this criterion, the criteria listed under
PCZO 136.06b must be addressed, which is intended to limit impacts and not increase the cost of
surrounding farm and forest uses in the surrounding area.

In evaluating the adoption of this text amendment, staff considered the potential nlgative.
externalitier that.ouid be associated with the law that would otherwise be avoided. As discussed,

PCZO Chapter 136 currently permits agri-tourism when associated with farm use without a five (5)

year look b^ack. If agri-touriim and other commercial events were to be adopted as a discrete use, as

authorized by the Siate, the County would be required to consider a cumulative impacts analysis
upon each license/permit renewal period. The cumulative impacts analysis.is intended to evaluate

whether the existing agri-tourism ind other commercial events, together withother existing agri-
tourism in the srrrro-utrlingarea,have materially altered the agricultural stability of the land use

pattern in the surroundinfarea. Staff s primaryconcern.with adopting this as a discrete use is that

ihe required cumulative ilmpacts analysis is concentrated on mitigating impacts.that have already
o".uobd, regardless of wh6 is responsible for the impacts, rather than considering and preventing
potential-im[acts before they occur. Analyzingwhether the agritourism and other commercial
bvents have'materially alter6d the agriculiuralltability of the land us9 pattern of the surrounding
area does nothing to prevent the impacts over the course of the initial fiveyears. It also does not
require businessJs thit are causing the most significant impact to change their practices. BuL it
.o.rld punish the first businesses that bring agri-tourism to the area at the end ofthe ltve years. For

e*ample, if, as part of the five year cumulative impacts analysis, the County finds that other new

agri-tbuiism businesses, together with the first business, have.significantly impacted the area, the

C"ounty would be requiied Io deny the five year renewal permit for the first business. A fundamental
problem with this approach is that it would-not attract the typeof capital investment lhat may !9
ireeded to mitigate the impacts in the first place, as there would,no! be any certainty.fqr.alSPplicant
making the investment thit they would be allowed to continue their use beyond the initial five
years.

Since this law took effect rn20l1, Polk County has not had the need to enact the law. Farm
operations have been permitted to pursue agri-iourism, including making the expensive fire, life,
and safety changes the County required to ensure the public is safe.

Because the County already permits this use in conjunction with farm use, subject to either an

administrative review or a tonditional use permit, where staff imposes conditions to ensure the size

and scale of such events do not impact surrounding farm and forest activities, staff believes that

adopting a text amendment to allow for agri-tourism and other commercial events as a discrete use

*orild b..e unnecessary. For the reasons deicribed above, staff and the Planning Commission
recommend not adopting this text amendment'

ATTACHMENT A

Board of Commissioners Memo (8-30-2023) l0



General Findings:

The recommended amendments to the PCZO would comply with and implement the applicable
amendments to State law. Consequently, this update process would be consistent with ORS

lg7.646(l). An exception to the Oregon Statewide Planning Goals is not r9tug9{!o approve any.of
these amindments. Staff concludes t[at the proposed text amendments to the PCZO would comply
with this criterion.

Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan (PCCP) goals, policies and intento and
any plan map amendment ciiteria in the plan; IPCZO 115.060(8)l

(B)

Findines:

ATTACHMENT A

The Polk County Comprehensive Plan (PCCP) is implemented by the p_rovision^s in the PCZO and
Polk County Su6divisibn and Partition drdinance GCSO). Section 7 of the PCC^PZ Implementation
Techniques, states: "in theory, the zoning ordinance is a legislative expressiorr of the

Compreheniive Plan and must satisfy certain standards set out by statute." The PCCP is
implemented within the bounds provided by State law. The PCC| can set goals.and p_olicies, which
through implementation by the pCZO or PCSO, are more restrictive than State law. However, the

proviJions bf the PCZO oi pCSO may not be less restrictive than State law. Where Po_lk County
iequirements and ORS conflict, the iounty is required to apply the more restrictive of the two
standards.

As discussed above, ORS 197.646 requires that Polk County update its local code to implement
changes to State law. Until such changes are made, the Co_unty must-implement the new provisions
of StIte law directly. Planning Staff is cunently applying State law directly to applications.for many

of the proposed changes. fn lftht of the changes to Siate-law, Polk County.has an opportunity to 
^

evaluate and consider"adoptin! these changes to pCZO Chapter 136. As discussed above, some of
these changes are required^ and'other chanfes are optiona!. MqnV of the changes are not substantive
but are rati'er intended to provide parity between the local ordinance and the language found in
State law.

The proposed text amendments would include changes to PCZO 136.030, which pertains. to uses

that ire butright permitted in the EFU zone. These changes a1g mallatory andwould add the

language froir ORS Chapter 2I5 and OAR Chapter 660 Division 33 verbatim in order to provide
betier farity with State law. The intent of this is to afford citizens theright to uses that have little or
no impact on neighboring properties without requiring a land use application or license. By
adopting the lang-uage foirnO in State law verbatim, th! c_o,unty w-ogld be. p11{t1tg all such uses

thaiareiutright-permitted uses and authorizedby ORS Chapt-er 215 and OAR Chapter 660,

Division 33. ihe County does not have deference over any of these changes to uses that are outright
permitted in the EFU zone.

The proposed text amendments would also include changes to PCZO 136.040, which p^ertains to
farrnand nonfarm uses that are subject to administrative review land use applications. Similar to
PCZO 136.030, these changes are mandatory and are intended to provide better Pqjty with.State
law by adopting the langua-ge found in the afplicable ORQs and OARs verbatim. N{uty of these

changss have b-een apptieO 6y County staff directly to land use applications. Therefore, the intent of
thesichanges is simiriy to add the language from State law to the local ordinance rather than
applying the provisions directly from State law.

The proposed text amendments could include changes to PCZO 136.050, which pertains to farm
and nonhrm uses that are subject to the review andapproval of a conditional use land use

application. The changes to this section are not mand-atory,lowever, as discussed above, the

County may be more iestrictive than State law, though not less restrictive. As discussed in the

previous se'ction, the Planning Commission has made a recommendation to the Board of
'Commissioners iegarding thJadoption of each of these changes to the PC49.The proposed 

^
amendments to the"PCZd are designed to directly implemenf State law, with the exception of
adopting uses that don't pertain toFolk County, such-as aerial fireworks businesses; or, uses that

Board of Commissioners Memo (8-30-2023) ll



could have unintended negative externalities, such as agri-tourism and other commercial events that
are not in conjunction with a winery, cider business, or farm brewery. The B,outd of Commissioners
could choose to recommend more restrictive standards in such cases where the Planning
Commission has recommended adoption.

Conformance with specific PCCP goals and policies are discussed below.

1. Polk County will strive to permit those uses that have little or no impact on
neighboring properties without requiring a land use determination or limited
land use determination. [PCCP Section 2, Element A, Goal 1'3]

2, Polk County will permit those farm and nonfarm uses in agricultural areas
authorized by Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 215 and Oregon Administrative
Rules Chapter 660lUivision 33. [PCCP Section 2, Element B, Agricultural Lands
Policy 1.41

3. Polk Counfy will discourage the development of nonfarm uses in agricultural
areas. IPCCP Section 2, Element B, Agricultural Lands Policy 1.5]

4. Polk County will permit farm-related and non-farm residential use in
agriculturai areas consistent with Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 21! U.d
Oregon Administrative Rules Chapter 660, Division 33. [PCCP Section 2, Element
B, Agricultural Lands Policy 1.6]

Findings:

The proposed text amendments would directly implement ORS 215.283 and other applicable
sectibniof ORS Chapter 2I5, and OAR Chapter 660, Division 33. These text amendments would
be consistent with PCCP Section 2, Element B, Policy 1.4, which states that Polk County will
permit those farm and nonfarm uses in agricultural areas authorize_d_by_ORp Clapjer 215 and OAR
^O6O-O::. 

These text amendments would also be consistent with PCCP Section 2, Element B,
Agricultural Lands Policy 1.6, which states that Polk County will permit farm-related and non-farm
reiidential use in agriculiural areas consistent with Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 215 and
Oregon Administritive Rules Chapter 660, Division 33. In addition, the required text amendments,
specifically the outright permitted uses listed inPCZO 136.030, would be consistent with PCCP
Section 2, Element a" Cbal 1.3, which states Polk County will strive to permit those uses that have
little or no impact on neighboring properties without requiring a land use determination or limited
land use determination.

The proposed text amendments would include amendments to nonfarm uses. PCCP Section 2,
Elemenf B, Agricultural Lands Policy 1.5 is intended to discourage nonfarm uses in the EFU zone,
although, it is acknowledged that some nonfarm uses are permitted subjegt to review and.approval
of an alministrative or conditional use application. As mentioned, in such cases where additional
nonfarm uses could be permitted or where there have been changes to State law pertaining to
nonfarm uses, staff has designed the proposed amendments to the PCZO to directly implement State
law. Because such nonfarm uses are subject to review and approval from the Planning Division,
limitations and conditions can be imposed to limit the impacts of those nonfarm uses. For this
reason, staff finds the proposed text amendments would be consistent with PCCP Section 2,
Element B, Agricultural Lands Policy 1.5.

5. Polk County will endeavor to conserve for agriculture those areas which exhibit a
predominance of agricultural soils, and an absence of nonfarm use interference
and conflicts. [PCCP Section 2, Element B, Agricultural Lands Policy 1.1]

6. Polk Counfy witl apply standards to high-value farmland areas consistent with
Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 215 and Oregon Administrative-Rules_Chapter
660, Uivision 33. IPCCP Section 2, Element B, Agricultural Lands Policy 1.3]

ATTACHMENT A

Board of Commissioners Memo (8-30-2023) t2



Findings:

ORS 215 and OAR Chapter 660 Division 33 apply specific provisions for soqre_gsgl gl agricultural
lands that are classified is high-value farmland,-ai defined in OAR 660-033-0020(8)(a)-(8. As
discussed, the proposed text amendments would be implemented directly from State law. By.

updating inepCZb to be consistent with State law, nonfarm uses on high-value.soils would be

tihiteO 
"and 

subject to the provisions found in State law. The Board of Commissioners may adopl
further restrictions for usei on high-value farmlands to further limit the potential interference and

conflict of nonfarm uses, however, potential conflicts would also be evaluated on a case-by-case 
-

basis through the conditional use review process. Staff lnds that by_adoptitg State law directly, the

proposed airendments would be consisteirt with PCCP Section 2, Element B, Agricultural Lands

Policy 1.1 and 1.3.

(C) That the proposed change is in the public interest and will be of general public
benefit; and

Findings: The purpose of this legislative amendment i.s to update thePCZO in order to reflect
ctranges in Staie liw or discrepancies found between State law and the PCZO. The proposed 

.
amenldments would be in the public interest because they would provide continuity letrygeg $e_
requirements of State law and^ thePCZO. Currently, the-Planning Division mu*apply ORS 215.and
OAR Cnapbr 660 Division 33 directly to some types of land use applications. This situation makes

it diffrculifor applicants and propertyowners to understand what provisions qPPIV to their property.

The proposed t6it amendmenls wouid resolve that issue. This continuity would benefit both
applicarits and other property owners seeking to understand their property rights.

This process also provides the opportunity for the Board of Commissioners to consider how to
regulate specific optional uses wliere the bounty can be _more restrictive than State law. For those

opiional changes discussed in this report,lhe Board of Commissioners could recommend.adopting
the text amendments as proposed by-Staff, recommend fuither restrictions, or recommend not
adopting the text amendments. In some cases, there have been changes in State law to optional uses

wlrictr hive resulted in the PCZO as being less restrictive in some sections. Although these.use_s are

optional, the changes are required to be adopted in order_to continue to be in compliance with State

law. Forsuch chaiges, the doard of Commissioners shall adopt those changes as required to no
longer be less restrictive than State law.

Staff believes that adopting the language from State law directly rather than being more restrictive
than State law would 6e in the public interest and of general public benefit because it removes
certain restrictions and would a^fford property owners the full property rights that are authori-zed by
the State. As discussed above, staff and the Planning Commission have also recommended that
some optional changes should not be adopted. For those changgq, staff believes that adoption would
be unnecessary and-it would be in the pu6lic interest and would be of general public benefit to not
adopt those changes at this time. Staff and the Planning Commission's recommendations on the
speiific optional changes are discussed in further detail above.

(D) Compliance with the provisions of any applicable inter-go_vernmental agreement
pertaining to urban growth boundaries and urbanizable land.

Findings:

Polk County has adopted intergovernmental agreements (IGAs) witheach 9f !!t. cities that have

urban gro*ih boundaries ruGB) that extend outside of city_limits and into Polk CountV!nlanning
jurisdiEtion. These cities are Safem, Dallas, Monmouth, Independence, and Willamina' The Falls
"City UCn is entirely located within city limits; therefore, Polk County does not have an IGA
regarding UGB land use management with Falls City.

The proposed text amendments to the PCZO would amend the standards for some uses that are

outright permitted and some uses that are subject to review ald qppJgYal of an administrative
revie"w or conditional use application. While most properties in the UGB are zoned Suburban

Residential (SR), where thes-e text amendments would not apply, some properties in UGBs are

ATTACHMENT A

Board of Commissioners Memo (8-30-2023) l3



zoned EFU. Most IGAs require that the County provide the Ci,ty with advanced notificatign gJany
land use application and IGA provisions would not be affected by t-beproposed u-pdate^s, S^t1[
provided riotice of the proposed text amendments to all cities in Polk County on June 28,2023.

Staff finds that the proposed text amendments would comply with this criterion.

ATTACHMENT A

Board of Commissioners Memo (8-30-2023) t4



POLK C UNTY

Porr CouNrY

ATTACHMENT B

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE * DALLAS, OREGON 97338
(s03) 623-9237

AUSTIN M"GUIGAN
Director

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Commissioners

FROM: Eric Knudson, Associate Planner
Polk County Community Development

DATE: October 3,2023

SUBJECT: Deliberation for Legislative Amendment LA23-02: Text amendments to Polk County
Zoning Ordinance (PCZO) Chapter 1 36

BOC Public Meetingo Deliberation - October 1L,2023

ISSUE:

Should the Polk County Board of Commissioners movs to adopt the text amen{ry9nts to PCZO
Chapter 136, as presenied in the September 6,2023 Public Hearing for LA 23-02? The proposed.

text amendmenti are intended to bring PCZO Chapter 136 into compliance with State law, and to
consider adopting optional changes for uses that could be permitted within the EFU zone.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Board of Commissioners deliberate on the record and public
comments received after the September 6,2023 public hearing and move to adopt the proposed

text amendments to PCZO Chapter 136, as included in Attachment A.

Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 197.646 states that when new land use statutes, statewide land
use llanning goals or rules implementing the statutes or the goals are enacted, counties must
eith6r adopt-airendments to th-eir local code to implement the changes. to State law or apply those

changes directly to land use applications. Curuently, the Planning Division applies certain
secti6ns of ORS and Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR) directly to land use applications. Some

changes in State law are not mandated to be adopted by the local government, but rather allow
the lJcal government the opportunity to be more restrictive than State law. Tle proposed
legislativ6 amendment is iniended to provide conformity toPCZO.Chaptgr 136 with land use

relulations found in State law where required, and to consider optional changes to PCZO
Cfr'apter 136 where Polk County's local brdinance may be currently more restrictive than or
difGrentiates from State law. It should be noted that many of the required text amendments to
PCZO 136.030, 136.040, 136.060 and 136.070 found in Attachment A are not substantive
changes but are rather intended to provide parity with the language found in State law.

Typically, text amendments solely intended for conformance with provisions-in State law would
b6 proce'ssed through a ministerial action, however, staff has chosen to consolidate those changes

thajt are required ant those changes that are optional into one legislative amendment process in
order to ev-aluate all amendments to PCZO Chapter 136 simultaneously.

BACKGROUND:

F:\GROUP\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative AmendmentsV023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment B (Deliberation Findings) doc I



A public hearing was held before the Polk County Planning Commission on July 18,2023,
wdere Planning-Staff made a recommendation to the Planning Co_mmission regarding tfe . .
proposed text imendments toPCZO Chapter 136. The Planning Commission concuned with
ituff o.r all proposed text amendments with consideration of the public comments received prior
to the July i8, 2023 pttblic hearing (see Attachments B-1 to B-2) and recommended that the

Board of-Commissioners adopt StafPs recommendation. A public hearing before the Board of
Commissioners was conducted on September 6,2023, whele the Board consideredJhe public
comments received after the Planning Commission public hearing but priorto the Board of
Commissioners public hearing (see Attachments C-1 to C-4). At the public hgarin-g, t!9F^outd
moved to leave the record open'for additional written comments until September 20,2023,, at

5:00 P.M. It was determined at the public hearing that a deliberation meeting would then be

scheduled shortly after the record closed.

During the open-record period, staff received two (2) additional comments from tle public
pertaiiing to^the proposed text amendments (see Attachments D-_1 a^n{ D-2), The first comment
*ur r...ii.d viaihe^minutes from the September 13,2023 Board of Commissioners meeting
(Attachment D-1). In this comment, a citizenasked the Board of Commissioners to
ngrandfather" dog kennels in the EFU zone that were established prior to the potential text
airendments. Staif understands this citizen to be referring to pre-existing, non-conforming dog

kennels.

As discussed in the Memorandum and Staff Report provided to the Board of Commissioners on
August 30,2023,the proposed changes to dog kennels.are- intended to remove restrictions on
higf,-value farmland tb aliow dog ke-nnels on any land in the EIU zone, subject to review and

ap"proval of a conditional use permit. The proposed te{ amendments would also authorize
training classes or testing triali under PCZO i:6.OSOG) that cannot otherwise be authorized
under FCZO 136.040ruI. Because the proposed changes to dgg \ennefs would be less restrictive
than how dog kennels'aie currently regulated inPCZO 136.050(L),- it is unclear the manner in
which pre-eiisting dog kennels couldbe "grandfathered." Nonetheles.s, pursuant toPCZO
114.1lb, any use i"triitr is permitted as a conditional use as provided InPCZO Chapter^l36.shall
not be Ai:emea a nonconfoiming use, but shall without further action, be deemed a conforming
use qualified with such conditiJns as the Hearings Officer has required through a conditional use

permit.

The second comment was received on September 20,2023 and is included as Attachment D-2. In
this comment, a citizen indicates that Polk County limited and imposed_arbitrary restrictions on
Polk County citizens by failing to provide a sign-up sheet at the back of the hearing room to.
allow all inierested pariies to frintiheir name and mailing address to qua_lify to appeal a.forth
coming the Board o?Commissioners decision for Planning File LA23-02, which the citizen
states is unrevealed until the Board deliberates. This comment fuither indicates that the Planning

Division is inhibiting participation of farmers on this matter by scheduling hearings at the
farmers' busiest time.

A public sign-up sheet for testifiers was provided at the September 6,2023 Board of
Cdmmissio'ners public hearing. The testiher sheet is intend-ed to collect the name.and mai^ling

address of those'that testify in-order to preserve their standing. Iq lhe public hearing, staff
received testimony from four (4) citizeirs. The testifiers' sheet with the names and.mailing
addresses of those who testified-was added to the record following the public hearing. Those

persons who testified were added to the interested.parties list to ensure that all persons who

ilrovided written or oral testimony are provided wiih any future notices pertaining to this
'application. In additiofl, ffiy person may request in writing to be added to the interested parties

ii.it" 
".,.rr.. 

they are piouia"a with any notices pertaining to_this.application. Staff is unaware of
any local ordinances, bt"gon Revised Statutes, or Oregon Administrative Rules that require Polk
County to provide a sign-[p sheet for those persons who attend a public hearing, but do not
provide written or oral testimony.

ATTACHMENT B

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment B (Deliberation Findings).doc 2



The public notice of the Board of Commissioners public hearing was sent to all interested
partibs, published on the Polk County website, and was published in the Itemizer Observer
irewspaper on August 16,2023 and was in accordance with all public hearing.notification
requiiements liste-cl inPCZO 111.340,111.350, and I I !.37.0. The Planning Division page.of the

Poik County website is updated regularly, which includes information regarding this application'

All public comments received for this application are included with this memorandum as

attaihments, as specified below. The fuiirecord for this application is available for inspection at the

Polk County Community Development Department.

ATTACHMENT B

S:

Proposed Amendments to PCZO Chapter 136

Comments provided prior to the Planning Commission Hearing

Comments provided after the Planning Commission Hearing, but prior to
the Board of Commissioners Hearing

Comments received during the open-record period after the Board of
Commissioners Public Hearing

DISCUSSIO

After deliberating on the record and public comments received for this application, the Board of
Commissioners' options include the following:

(1) Move to approve Legislative Amendment 23-02 as recommended_by Staff and the
Planning eommission; thereby amending the P CZO Chapters 13 6 by :

(a) Adopting the PCZO amendments presented in Attachment A, or

(b) As further amended by the Board of Commissioners (changes to the text pertaining to, ' golf courses as recommended by the public, and/or any other revisions recommended
by the board); or

(2) Continue the public hearing; or

(3) Other.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

No fiscal impacts to the County have been identified'

ATTACHMENTS:

A
B-1 to B-2

C-l to C-4

D-l to D-2

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendmentsu023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment B (Deliberation Findings).doc 3



ATTACHMENT C

Amendments to Polk County ZoningOrdinance Chapter 136;

Exclusive Farm Use (EFU) ZoningDistrict

Additions are double-utdcducd

Deletions are in s+rike+hretrgh

COMMERCIAL HV OTHER PCZO

RESOURCE USES HV OTHER PCZO

Farm Use as defined in ORS 215.203 P P 030(A)

for the of Farm AR AR 040/sN

IIse and of Forest Lands P P 0308)

Farm and Forest Accessory Structures P P 030(c)

Forest Product Proces F CUP CUP 050(A)

Wetland CreatiorVRestoration and Enhancement P P 030(D)

uaculture CUP CUP 050G)

Insect B CUP CUP 050rc)

Operations for the Extraction and Bottling of
Water

CUP CUP 0s0(D)

RESIDENTIAL HV OTHER PCZO

Farm Dwelling AR AR 040(A,D,
E,F)

Acce Farm AR AR 040K)

Family Farm Hel Dwelling AR AR 040(H)

Lot of Record Dwel - Not Value NA AR 040(G)

Lot of Record Dwel Value AR NA 040rc)

Dwelling in Conjunction With a Commercial AR AR 040(MD

Relocated Farm AR AR O40NM

Small-Tract Dwelline - High-Value AR NA 040(B)

Nonfarm NP CUP 050(E)

Nonfarm on Nonfarm Parcel NP CUP 050(F)

lacement Dwell AR AR 040(r)

of Historic Dwel AR AR 040(J)

Temporary Mcdieal Hardship Dwelling AREUP A+EUB 04s@
050rc)

Residential Home oRS 197 CUP CUP 050(GH)

Room and Board Arrangements CUP CUP 050(HD

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).doc 136-l



Acti In unction with Farm Use CUP CI]P 0506D

Food Service Safe Harbor CUP CUP 0509K)

Sinele Day Aeri-Tourism Event P P 030(R)

Home Occupations CUP CUP 0s0(KL)

Kennels NP CUP CUP 050&M

Dog Training Classes or Testing Trials AR&
EUP

AR&
CUP

040@L)
&
050M)

Trainins and Stabling Horses for Profit P P 030(A)

Winery, as desuibed in ORS 215.452 or 215.453 AR&
CUP

AR&
CUP

040@N
&
050e4

Cider Busine as described in ORS 215.451 AR AR 040eQ)

Farm AR AR 040(9P)

On-site Filming and Accessory Activities for 45
or less

P P 030(L)

On-site Filming and Accessory Activities for more
than 45 S

CUP CUP 050(MU)

Farm Stand P&AR P&AR os](Q &
040Ro)

Parkine of not more than seven log trucks AR AR 040(TS)

Destination Resort NP CUP 050No)

Business CUP CUP 050(on

Equine Therapeutic and Counselinq Ae1iv{iss CUP CUP 05!fi)

ATTACHMENT C

TRANSPORTATION HV OTIIER PCZO

Personal Use and CUP CUP 050&T)

Climbing and Passing Lanes within Right-of Way
existing on July 1,1987

P P 030(G)

MIIYERAL AND AGGREGATE HV OTIIER PCZO

P P 030(E)

Mineral RS 517.750 P P 0308)

and Processing of Geothermal, (ORS
522 Oil and Gas oRS 520

CUP CUP 0s0(Qg

Mining and Processing of Mineral and Aggregate
Materials

CUP CUP 050(Q9

Processing of into Asphalt or Portland
Cement ORS 51 7

CUP CUP 050(Qg

Processing of Other Mineral Resources CUP CUP 0s0(Qg

F:\GROUP\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendmentsg023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).doc 136-2



and Travel lanes,
right-of-way
of new land

, but not
S

CUP CUP 0s0(su)

Reconstruction or Modification of Public Roads,
not including addition of travel lanes or removal of
buildings, but not resulting in the creation of new
land

P P 030(H)

Reconstruction or Modification of Public Roads
an{Hiehruays, involving the removal of buildings,
but not resulting in the creation of new land

CUP CUP 050(+D

Temporary Public Road Detours P P 0300)

Minor Improvements to Existing Road and
Highway Related Facilities within right-of-way
existins on July l.1987

P P 030(J)

creation of new land parcels

Improvements to Existing Road and Highway
Related Facilities where additional property or
right-of-way is required, but not resulting in the

CUP CUP 0s0@w
)

Other Roads, Highways and Transportation
Facilities not listed

CUP and
Exception

CUP and
Exception

Transportation
Facilities allowed bv OAR 660-012-0065

CUP CUP 050(vD

ATTACHMENT C

UTILITIES & SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL
FACILITTES

HV OTHER PCZO

Utility Facilities Necessary for Public Service,
including wetland waste treatment systems but not
including commerc ial power facilities
or transmtssron towers over 200 feet ln

AR AR 040(vu

Transmissien Communication and Broadcast
Towers over 200 feet in heieht

CUP CUP 05o1wg

Solid Waste Site under ORS 459.245 NP CUP 050&D

Composting Facilities AR CUP 040(xw,
050(v
AA)

Commercial Power Facilities CUP CUP O5OEBB)

Commercial Wind Power Generating Facilities CUP CUP 050(Me
a

Commerciat Pnotov
Facilities

zuP EUP OJIQD)

Fire service facilities providing rural fire
servlces

P P 030(M)

Irrigation canals, delivery lines and those
structures and accessory operation facilities
associated with a district as defined in ORS
s40.505

P P 030(N)

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\pLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment c (chapter changes).doc 136-3



U faci service lines P P 030(o)

Non-commercial wind systems,
meteoro cal towers and taic

P P 030(P)

Non-commercial wind
meteorological towers

energy systems and
needing a height or type of

construction modifi cation

AR AR 040(wD

Non-commercial wind energy systems and
meteorological towers in a UGB

CUP CUP 050(BBE
E)

ATTACHMENT C

PARKS/PUBLIC/QUASI-PUBLIC
F'ACILTTTES

HV OTHER PCZO

Schools, public or private (K-12) that serve the
residents ofthe rural area

NP CUP 050Gru)

Churches and cemeteries in conjunction with
churches

P P 030(K)

Parks, private, including playgrounds,
serves and

NP CUP 050(DDg
a

Public parks and playgrounds. A public park ryay
be established consistent with the provisions of
oRS 195.120

CUP CUP 050(eeL
D

Model Aircraft Takeoff and Landing Sites AR AR 0408n
Expansion of Existing County Fairgrounds CUP CUP 0s0@Ea

H)

Golf Courses NP CUP 050(FFII
)

Community centers owned by a governmental
or a fit

CUP CUP 050(reJ
J)

Firearms training facility as provided in ORS
197.770

AR AR 040(zL)

Living history museum CUP CUP 050(HHK
n

Childcare Facilities CUP CUP 050MM)

136.030. USES PERMITTED BY RIGHT. The following uses are permitted, subject to

applicable standards set forth in the Polk County Zo,ning Ordinance and as may otherwise be

indicated by federal, state and local permits or regulations:

(E) Ooerations for the
as defined oRS 522.005 an*OR$52+3e5, including theBe;ouree;.

placement and operation of
for an individualequlpment

ssors, separators and other customary production
acent to the wellhead.

(F) as defined in ORS

5n.750

FIGROUP\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendmentsu023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).doc 136-4



(H)

0.1/

or

or

ATTACHMENT C

Iic Roads

of travel lanes,
of buildings or creation of new land parcels. IAmcndedhv

lines and acces

a as defined in O IAmendedbv0rdinance

Ordinance23J3l

23{X}l

(o) UtiliLv facilin service lines IoAR 660-03s-01 30(32)l
structures that end at a point where the utility service
that are located on one or more of the following:

(1) A public right of way; or

(2) Land immediately adjacent to a public right of way, provided the written
consent ofall adjacent property owners has been obtained; or

(3) The property to be served by the utility.

@ Farm Stand IOAR 660-033-0130(23)J, subject to the following requirements:

(1) The structures are temporary, do not require building permits und.e1. the Oregon
Structural Specialty Code, and are used for sale of farm crops and livestock
grown on the farm operation, or grown onthe farm operati-ol and other farm
operations in Oregon, including the sale of retail incidental items to promote 

^
the sale of farm ciops or livestock sold at the farm stand, if the annual sales of
the incidental items do not make up more than25 percent of the total annual
sales ofthe farm stand; and

(2) If retail incidental items are offered for sale, !h.ey shall be offered for sale at the
same time and location as the farm crops and livestock sold by the farm stand.

(3) The farm stand does not include structures desig_ned for occupancy as a_

residence or for activities other than the sale of farm crops and livestock and
does not include structures for banquets, public gatherings or public
entertainment.

(4) As used in this section, "farm crops or livestock" includes both fresh and
processed farm crops and livestock grown onthe farm operation, or grown on
ihe farm operation 

-and 
other farm operations in Oregon. As used in this

subsection, "processed crops and livestock" includes jams, syrups, apple cider,
animal produits and other similar farm crops and livestock that have been
p.ocess^ed and converted into another product but not prepared food items.
irtotwithstanding the foregoing, a farm stand used in conjunction with a

marijuana crop is not permitted.

(5) Farms stands that would include fee based activities to promote the sale of
farm crops or livestock sold at the farm stand shall be reviewed under PCZO
136.040(P). [Amended by Ordinance l3-05 and l6-011

(6) A farm stand mav n iuana
nroducts or extrac

136.040. USES SUBJECT TO ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW. The following uses are

permitted, subject to review and approval under the prescriptive standards specified herein and as

may otherwise be indicated by federal, state and local regulations and permits:

, and agecssery facilities or
is received by the customer and

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).doc 136-5



ATTACHMENT C

SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCES

(A) Dwell on Farmland 660-033-01 3

and . A Farm lng may be on a tract land classified as

value, the tract meets the following criteria: LAmenaea rv ordinan

(1)

(2)

(3)

Ordinance l8-0ll
ingsre ExcePting for lawfullY

established seasonai farm worker housing aoproved Drior to 20

otherdwclrneG) on lands designated forexclusive farm uss owned by the
ffior:anch orrator or on the farm orraneh operation); and

The dwelling will be occupied by a person of persons who produced the

commodities whiehpreyi<ied futgrossed the income under subsection 1

above.

At the time of application for a dwelling that requires one.or more contiguous
or noncontiguouilots or parcels of a farm or ranch operation to comply with
the gross in[ome requirements, the property owner shall provide a title report,.
for t'hose lots or pariels located wit6in a contiguous county, that was generated

within 30 days of date the application is submitted.

Prior to finalaBproval for a dwelling that
requires one or more contiguous or noncontiguous lots or parcels of a farm or
ranch operation to comply with the grols income requirements, thepr_operty

owner Jhdl provide fof the recording of a deed restriction with the Polk
County Cleri< consistent with that re(uired by OAR 660-033-0135(9!)@!for
the properties subject to the application that precludes:

(a) All future rights to Maonslruela dwelling, except for
accessory fa-rm dwellings, relative farm assistance dwellings, temporary
hardship-dwellings or replacement dwellings allowed by oRS chapter
215; and

(b) The use of any gross farm income earned on the lots or parcels to qualify
another lot or parcel for a primary farm dwelling. [Amended by Ordinance

16-01 |

5(4)
high

(4)

(5)

(B) I on mland IoAR 660-03 s-01 30(3) (ddl, A
dwelling au on a tract of land classified as high-value, where the

tract meets following requirements: IAmended bY ordina

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\pLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).doc 136-6



(1)

(2)

The lot or parcel on which the dwelling will be sited was lawfully created and
was acquir-ed and owned continuously by the present owng{ since prior to
January 1, 1985 (Note: Present owner may also qualify, if the prope{y ryqt -

inherited by devise or intestate secession from a person that acquired a1d !{_
owned coniinuously the lawfully created parcel since prior to January 1, 1985);

The tract is eurrentty vaeant (n
s€asoftat+affi{ io*er+€usind on wfrictr tne aweUl
include a dwellins:

ATTACHMENT C

of a tract
lot or parcel

(3) Ilt The lot or parcel on which the dwelling will be sited was part
existing on November 4,7993 and no dwelling exists on another
that was part of that tract;

(4) The prsposed dwelling
requirements of the C
but not limited to

VE use regulations,
which apply to flood hazard areas,

withJhe
including
development within the
areas or development in
habitat;-and

Willamette River Greenway , development in forested
significant resource areas, such as riparian or big game

(s0)

(q) The tract {n#€re on whicb the dwelling \irculd will be sited is:

(a) Not composed predominately of prime, unique Natural Resource
Conservation Service (NRCS) Class I or II soils identified in OAR 660-
03 3 -0020(8Xa)-er-(b);

(b) Composed predominately of high-value (NRCS) Class III and IV soils
identified in OAR 660-033-0020(8Xc) or (d);-or and

(c) Composed predominantly of a combination of high-valueNRCS Class
III and IV sbils identified in OAR 660-33-020(8Xc) or (d) and prime,
unique, NRCS Class I or II soils identified in OAR 660-033-0020(8Xa)
or (b);

(d) Twenty-one (2T) acres or less in size; and

(e) Bordered on at least 670/o of its perimeter by tracts less than 21 acres in
size and at least 2 such tracts had dwellings on them on Jan. 1, 1993; or,

(D The tract is not aflaglot and is bordered on at least 25oh of its perimeter
by tracts less than 2[ acres in size and at least four dwellings. existed on
Jan. 1, 1993, within one-quarter mile of the center of the subject tract.
Where the tract abuts an urban growth boundary, up to 2 of the 4
dwellings may lie within an urban growth boundary, but only if the
subject tract abuts an urban growth boundary; or

(g) The tract is a flag lot and is bordered on at least 25 percent of its
perimeter by traCts that are smaller thanZl acres, and at least four

F:\GROUP\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).doc 136-7



at a 9O-degree angle to
ofthe longest adjacent
determining the center,
the subiect tract.

flag lot. Regardles
ofthe subject tract

ATTACHMENT C

center
lines of

s of the method of
shall be located on

means point of intersectton
the first line crosses the midpoint of the longest side of a

the side, and the second line crosses the
side of the
the center

Notes: (1) As used in this subsection, "owner" includes the wife, husband,
son, daughter, mother, father, brother, brother-in-law, sister, sister-in-
law; son-in-law, daughter-in-law, mother-in-law, father-in-1aw, aunt,
uncie, deec, nephewl stepparent, stepchild, grandparent, o-r.grandchild of
the owner oi a 6usiness *tity owned by any one or a combination of
these family members.

(2) Upon approval, the Planning Director shall notify the.County
Assessor thaf fhe governing body intends to allow the dwelling. [660-
033-0130(3Xh)l

(:l An authorizationto establish a dwelling pylsygry to.this subsection
rs valid for the duration specified in Section 136.160 for the ?Pplicant
that qualified for the dweiling and for any other persol tlat the qualified
applibant transferred the property to after the date of the land use

decision. [660-033-01 30(3Xi)]

(C) Lot-qf-Record Dwelling on High-Value !-a, rnllaltd IOAR 660-033-0130(3)(c)J.. A
actoflandclassifiedashigh-va1ue,wherethe

tract meets the following criteria: tlmenoea nv oraina

(1) The Polk County Hearings Officer shall determine whether the subject parcel is
a lot-of-record, based on the following criteria:

(a) The lot or parcel on which the dwelling will be sited was lawfully
created and was acquired and owned continuously by the present owner
since prior to Januaiy 1, 1985 (f,trote: Present owner may also qualify, if
the prbperty was inh-erited by devise or intestate secession from a person
that ac{uir6d and had owned continuously the lawfully created lol-ar
parcel prior to JanuarY 1, 1985);

(b)Thetractonwhichthedwellingwi!!besited@
drvellings, exeepting lawfully established seasenal farm werker hotrsing)
does not include a dwelling;

(c) {f,+ lhe lot or parcel on which the dwelling_will be sited was part of a
tract existing on November 4,1993 no dwelling exists on another lot or
parcel that was Part of that tract;

F:\CROUp\COMMDEV\pLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes) doc 136-8



(d) rhe

(e0

mee+s

ATTACHMENT C

use
which apply to flood
ver Greenway,

re but not to
hazard areas, development within the Willamette Ri
development in forested areas or development in significant resource
areas, iuch as riparian or big game habitat; and

(2) The Hearings Officer shall determine that:

(a) The.parcel cannot practicably.be managed for farm.use, by itself, or in
con;unction with olher land, due to extraordinary circums_tances inherent
in the land or its physical setting that do not apply generally to other land
in the vicinity. Thii criterion requires evidence that the subject lot_or
parcel cannoi be physically used for farm use without undue hardship or
biffrculty because oiextraordinary circumstances inherent in the land or
its physical setting. Neither size alone nor a parcel's limited economic
pot'eniial demonstiate that a lot or parcel cannot be practicably managed
ior farm use. Examples of "extraordinary circumstances inherent in the
land or its physical setting" include very steep slopes, deep-ravines,
rivers, streams, roads, railroad, or utility lines or other similar natural or
physical barriers that by themselves or in combination separate the^

iu6ject lot or parcel from adjacent agricultural land and prevent.it from
being practicably managed for farm use by itself or together with
adjacent or nearby farms. A lot or parcel that has been_put to farm use

deipite the proximity of a natural barrier or since the placement of a
physical barrier shall be presumed manageable for farm use;

(b) The dwelling will not force a significant change in accepted farm or
forest practices on surrounding lands devoted to farm and forest use;

(c) The dwelling will not significantly increase the cost of farm or forest
practices on-surrounding lands devoted to farm and forest use; and

(d) The applicant shall demonstrate that the proposed lot-of-record dwelling
will noi materially alter the stability of the overall land use pattern in the
area' by apolving-the st

(3) Notice of the public hearing shall be provided to_the Slqte @ Department
of Agriculture at least 20 calendar days prior to the public hearing^ before the
hearilgs officer. Upon approval, the Planning Director shall notify_tlre^!^ounty
Assesir that the governing body intends to allow the dwelling. [660-033-
0130(3Xh)l

(4) Authorization of a single-family dwelling undel the provisions of this
subsection may be transferred by a person who has qualified under this
subsection to iny other person afteithe effective date of the land use decision.

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).doc 136'9



ATTACHMENT C

An authorizationto establish a dwelling pursuant to this subsection is valid for
the duration specified in Section 136.160 for the applicant that qualified.for the

dwelling and ior any other person that the qualified applicant transferred the
property to after the elfeeliye date of the land use decision. [660-033-
0130(3Xi)l

Note: As used in this subsection, "owner" includes the wife, husband, son, daughter,
mother, father, brother, brother-in-law, sister, sister-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-
law, mother-in-law, father-in-law, aunt, uncle-nieeC, nephew, stepparent, stepchild,
grandparent, or grandchild of the owner or a business entity owned by any one or a
combination of these family members.

(D) Dwellins for

033-0135 (3), qnd (5) . A farm

high value ect to the

currently1) The subject tract is employed

l,tmendeO ny Oraina

(1) The parcel on which the dwelling is to be located is at least 160 acres in size;

(2) The subject tract is currently in ernBloycd.lor farm use, asdcfiqedjdRs
215203;

(3) The dwelling will be occupied by a person or persons who-will be principally
engaged in tLe farm use of the +r;nA subjcefUas!, such_as planting, harvesting,
marketing or caring for livestock, at a commercial scale; and

(4) The subject tract is currently vacant (no slhel dwellings, excepting lawfully
established seasonal farm worker housing apDroved Drior to 2m).

(E)

the Farm Ooerator on Other Farmland - A Standard [oAR 660-
033-0135(1)J. A farm dwelling may be

as high value
standards:

au+herized on a tract of not
subject to the following

the Farm Farml [oAR 660-
dwelling may be considered custom4
au+herizetl on a tract of land, not classified

standards: Il|.rnendeA nv OrAinan

forfarmuse@

AS

(

(a) at teast S+O,OOO in g
or

@

te ower of t

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes) doc 13 6- 10



a

ATTACHMENT C

StO.OOO or more acc
and

lawfully shed seasonal farm worker
housing

The dwelling will be occupied by a person or pers ons who produced the

commodities during each of the past two (2) years, e+three ) of the past five
(s)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

the Other loAR
660-03 3-0 I 3 5 (2)1. A farm may be on a tract of land, not
classified as high-value that is: lAmended bv ordina

At the time of application for a dwelling that requires one.or more contrguous

or noncontiguo;d lots or parcels of a farm or ranch operation to comply with
the gross in[ome requirements, theproperty owner shall provide a title report,.
for i'hose lots or pariels located witliin a contiguous county, that was generated

within 30 days of date the application is submitted.

Prior to issuance of construction permits for a dwelling that requires one or.

more contiguous or noncontiguous lots or parcels of a farm or ranch.operation
to comply iuith ttre gross income requirements, the grope{y owner shall
provid6 for the recoiding of a deed r-estriction with the Polk County Clerk
^consistent with that required by OAR 660-033-0135(95lftlfor the subject
properties that precludes:

(a) All future rights to ffiqon=struat a dwelling, except for
accessory farm dwellings, relative farm assistance dwelling_s, temporaly
hardshipdwellings or replacement dwellings allowed by ORS Chapter
215; and

(b) The use of any gross farm income earned on the lots or parcels to qualify
another lot or parcel for a primary farm dwelling; [Amended by Ordinance

16-01 |

(F)

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendmentsuo23\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).Ooc 136- 1 1



(1)

1"9

ATTACHMENT C

lawfully established

Tlqsr$j€eltaads A at least as large as the median size of those commercial
firm andlancE tracts capable of generating at least $10,000 in annual gross

sales that are located wiihin a study area which includes all tracts wholly or
partially within one mile from the perimeter of the subject tract;

The subject tract is capable of producing at least the median level of annual
gross raies of county indicator crops as the same commercial farm or ranch
iracts used to calcul-ate the tract siie under subsection (1) above, provided,
however, that marijuana is not used as a county indicator crop; lAmended by

Ordinance 16-01|

Tlqsubjceilraqtjs G eurrently employed for farm use-Sdgfined irl-ORS

TiMarn@{cap-able of producing tle gross qnnqal sales requirer.nen!
uniler subsection (2) ibove. (Note: If no farm use has been established at the
time of application,.land use approval shall be subject to full establishment of
the farm 

^use, 
as described und-ei subsection 2 above, prior to issuance of a

building permit for the dwelling);

The dwelling will be occupied by a person or persons who will be principally
engaged in the farm use of the +r;na subjceUra4. such_as planting, harvesting,
marketing, or caring for livestock at a commercial scale;

ffre suUect tot or p A at least l0
acres in size; and

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)
seasonal farm worker housing
the subiect tractl:

(7) fn determinine the eross sates capabil

tract:

oreviously to qualify anat
'a nrimarv farm dwellinr

i5(?)(c) as 1

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNINC\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter ChangeO doc 136- 12



(G)

ATTACHMENT C

R ue Farmland R 660-03s-0130(3) (a)J. A
valuedwel may be authorized on a record on not classified as high-

To qualify as a lot-of-record, the parcel must meet the following criterta:
t,tmendeA nv OrAina

(1) The lot or parcel on which the dwelling will be sited was lawfully created and
was acquired and owned continuously by the present owner since prior to
January 1, 1985 (Note: The owner may also qualify if the property was
inherited by devise or intestate succession from a person that acquired and had
owned coniinuously the lawfully created lol-q parcel since prior to January 1,

1e85);

(2) The tract on which the dwelling will be sited does not include a dwelling
;

(3) The lot or parcel on which the dwelling will be sited was part of a tract existing
on November 4, 1993 and no dwelling exists on another lot or parcel that was
part of that tract;

(4) The Brqpos€d dwelling meets-aU-e+e+:s not nroniUitea
w&,ttr requirements of the Comprehensive Plan and land use regulations,

-nchlding 

but not limited to regulations which apply to flood hazard areas,
development within the Willamette River Greenway, development in forested
areas or development in significant resource areas, such as riparian or big game
habitat;-and

o

(s6)

(q) An authorizationto establish a dwelling pursuant to this subsection is valid for
the duration specified in Section 136.160 for the applicant that qualified for the
dwelling and for any other person that the qualified applicant transferred the
property to after thec{feelive date of the land use decision' IOAR660.03}
0130GXin

(79) Upon approval, the County Assessor that the
governing body

Notes (1) As used in this subsection, "owner" includes the wife, husband,
son, daughter, mother, father, brother, brother-in-law, sister, sister-in-
law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, mother-in-law, father-in-law, aunt,
uncle, nicec, nephew, stepparent, stepchild, grandparent, or grandchild of
the owner or a business entity owned by any one or a combination of
these family members. I00O-OIg-0130(3)(e)l

(2) Soil classes, soil ratings or other soil designations used in or made
pursuant to this section are those of the Soil Conservation Service in its

F:\GROUP\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legistative Amendmentsu023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).doc 136-13



most recent publication for that class, rating or designation before
November 4,1993. For purposes of approving a land use application
under Section 136.040(G), the soil class, soil rating or other soil
designation of a specific lot or parcel may be changed if the property
owner:

(a) Submits a statement of agreement from the Natural Resources
Conservation Service of the United States Department of
Agriculture that the soil class, soil rating or other soil designation
shbuld be adjusted based on new information; or

(b) Submits a report from a soils scientist whose credentials are

acceptable to the State Department of Agriculture that the soil
clasq soil rating or other sbil designation should be changed; and

ATTACHMENT C

of Agriculture that
ignee has reviewed

c Submits a statement from the State Department( )
the Director of Agriculture or the director's des

analysis in the report to be soundly

[oRS 2rs.7r\(s)]

(H) Dwellinq for Famib) Farm Help
farm help may be authorized, on

IoAR 660-033-0130(9)1. A dwelling for family
the same lot or parcel as the dwelling of the farm

operator where the dwelling will be

a relative of operator whose in the management and

farm use the existing commercial farm operation is required by the farm operator

The farm operator

required the farm operator

l,f menAed Uv OrOina

(r) Reolacement of Dwellins [oRS 2]5.283(1)

National
partt tioned
ona portion

(K)

of the farm tract. I,tmenoeo nv oraina

Accessorv Farm Dwellings IOAR 660-033-0] 30(24)l . Each accessory dwelling
@unctionwithfarmuseisauthorized,subjecttoreview
and approval under the following criteria: I,tmended nv oroi

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\LegislativeAmendmentsg023\LA23-02\BOCAdoption\AttachmentC(ChapterChanget).Ooc 136-14



ATTACHMENT C

(l)

(2)

(3)

Each dwelling will be occupied by a person or persons,who will be principally
engaged in thE farm use of ihe land and whose scasoual-or- Yearyaud
ass-isiance in the management of the farm use, such as planting,_harvesting,
marketing, or caring for livestock, is or will be required by the.farm operator.
The farm operator shall continue to play the predominant role in the
management and farm use of the farm. A farm operator is.a person. who 

.
operaies the farm, doing the work and making the day-to-day decisions about
such things as planting, harvesting, feeding and marketing;

The accessory dwelling will be located:

(a) On the same lot or parcel as the primary farm dwelling; or

(b) On the same tract as the primary farm dwelling_when the-lot or parcel on
which the accessory farm dwelling will be sited is consolidated into a
single parcel with all other contiguous lots and parcel in the tract; or

(c) On a lot or parcel on which the primary farm dwelling is not located,
when the aicessory farm dwelling is limited to only a manufactured
dwelling with a deed restriction filed with the ggunty clerk. The deed
restricti6n shall require the manufactured dwelling to be removed when
the lot or parcel is 

-conveyed 
to another party. The manufactured

dwelling may remain if it is re-authorized under these rules; or

(d)

subparagraph shall be removed, demolished, or converted to an

authorized non-residential use when farm-worker housing is no longer
req

or

(4)

(e) On a lot or parcel on which the primary farm dwelling is not located,
when the accessory farm dwelling is located on a lot or parcel at least the
size of the applicable minimum lot size under ORS 215.780 and the lot
or parcel complies with the gross farm income requirements in OAR
660-033-0135(51) or (:14),whichever is applicable, and

There is no other dwelling on lands zoned for exclusive farm use owne.d by the
farm operator that is vacant or currently occupied by persons not working on
the subJect farm or ranch and that could reasonably be used as an accessory
farm dwelling; and

The primary farm dwelling, to which the proposed dwelling would be

accessory, meets one of the following:

(a) On land not identified as high-value farmland, the primary farm dwelling
is located on a farm or ranch operation that is currently employed for
farm use, as defined in oRS 2l ana++eeuee+ in each of
the last tw@last five years,,or !n an av-elage of th
of tfre Ust ffie vears the lower of the
following:

(i) At least $40,000 Gqg4-d€lhrg in gross annual income from the
sale of farm products (Ir{ote: Gross farm income earned from a

F:\GROUp\COMMDE\ApLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).doc 136-15



ATTACHMENT C

(b)

(ii)

On land identified as high-value farmland, the primary farm dwelling is
located on a farm or ranch operation that is currently employed for farm

and
nas-eregueee at least ln gross annual income sale of
farm products in each of the last two years or three of the last five years,

In determining the gross

lngome, cost purchased live be deducted from the total
gross income attributed to the tract. Gross farm income earned from a

marijuana crop may not be used to qualify a lot or parcel for a dwelling;

On land defined as a commercial dairy pursuant to OAR 660-033-
0135(1+8) and the following:

(i) The building permits, if required, have been issued and
construction lias begun or been completed for the buildings and
animal waste facilities required for a commercial dairy farm;
and

(ii) The Oregon Department of Agriculture has appro_ve{u pqryit-^
for a "confined-animal feeding operation" under ORS 468B.050
and ORS 4688.200 to 4688.230; and

(iii) The Oregon Department of Agriculture lras approved a permil 
^

for a Producer License for the sale of dairy products under ORS
621.072.

marijuana crop may not be used to qualify a lot or parcel for a
dwelling. In determining the gross income, the cost of
purchased livestock shall be deducted from the total gross
income attributed to the tract); or

Gross annual income of at least the midpoint of the median
income range of gross annual sales for farms in the county with
gross annual sales of $ 10,000 or more according to }he 1992
eensus of Agriculture, Oregon. (Note: Gross farm income
earned from a marijuana crop may not be used to qualify a lot or
parcel for a dwelling. In determining the gross income,- the cost
bfpurchased livestock, shall be deducted from the total gross
income attributed to the tract); or

(c)

(s) A partition shall not be approved that separates the accessory farm.dwelling
from the primary farm d*elling, unless a subsequent land use^appli.cation
determines that ihe accessory farm dwelling and the primary farm dwelling
both qualify pursuant to the applicable provisions contained in Sections
136.040(4), (l), (B), or (F). A parcel may be created consistent with the
minimum parcel size for the zone.

An accessory farm dwelling approved pursuant to this section cannot later be

used to satisfy the requirements for a dwelling not provided in conjunction
with farm use.

(6)

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Chang".).Ooc 136-16



ATTACHMENT C

Note: "Accessory farm dwelling" includes all types of residential structures allowed
by the applicable state building code. [Amended by ordinance 16-0ll

th€#

(l) The hardship is eertified by a lieensed physieian;

the eare ef an aged er infirm persen or persens,

(8) A temperary residenee appreved under this seetien is net eligible{er

(MQ Dwelling in conjunctionwith a commercial dqify IOAR 660-033-0135(7)]. A
- arily provided in conjunction with a eorllmeteial

dairy farm as defined in OAR 660-033-0135(l+E) if: ILmenoeo ny oraina

(1) The subject tract will be employed as a commercialdairylpqattq that owns a

sufficient number of producing dairy animals capable of earning the gross

annual income from the sale of fluid milk required by:

(a) Section 136.040(A) if located on high-value farmland; or

(b) Section 136.040(E) if located on non-high-value farmland, whichever is
applicable; and

))

(2) The dwelling is sited on the same lot or parcel as the buildings required by the
commercial dairy; and

(3) The subject tract is vacant (no dwellings, excepting lawfully established
seasonal farm worker housing; aporoved orior to 20fi);

(4) The dwelling will be occupied by a personor persons who will be principally
engaged in the operation oTthe commercial dairy farm, such aq t!t9 feeding,
milklng or pastuiing of the dairy animals or other farm use activities necessary
to the operation of the commercial dairy farm; and

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changesl.doc 136-17



ATTACHMENT C

(5) The building permits, if required, have beert iqly.d for and construction has

begun for iliebuildings and animal waste facilities required for a commercial
dairy farm; and

(6) The Oregon Department of Agriculture has approved the following:

(a) A permit for a "confined animal feedlng operation" under ORS
4688.050 and ORS 4688.200 to 4688'230; and

(b) A Producer License for the sale of dairy products under ORS 621 .072.

(NIu! Relocated-farm operation dwqllillg tOA! 660-033-0115(9)1. A.dwelling may be' - @rovided in conjunction with farm use if:IArnendedLv

Ordinance23=031

(1) Within the last two years, the applicant owned and.operateda $Frg4farm or
ranch operation thaf earned the-gross farm income in 4g{the last five years

or four brthe last seven years as required by Section 136.040(A) or (E),
whichever is applicable;

(2) The subject lot or parcel on which the dwelling will be located is:

(a) Currently employed for the farm use, as defined in Section ll0.223,that
produced in the l-ast two years or three o{the last.five years the gross

iarm income required bySection 136.040(A) or (E), whichever is
applicable; and

(b) At least the size of the applicable minimum parcel size; and

(3) The subject tract is vacant (no dwellings, excepting^llyfullV established

seasonai farm worker housing aoprovea prior to ZOU); and

(4) The dwelling will be occupied by a person or persons.who produced the

commoditieJwhich grossed the income in paragraph (1) of this subsection;

(5) In determining the gross income required by subsections (1) and (2)(a), of this
subsection:

(a) The cost of.purchased livestock shall be deducted from the total gross

lncome attributed to the tract; and

(b) Only gross income from land owned, not leased or rented, shall be

counted.

COMMERCIAL USES

(oN)

eq)

(aD

(RQ)

Winery IORS2]5.452J,subjecttotherequirementsof PCZOChapter 117. [Amended

by Ordinance I l-091

Cider Business [OR5.283.45{, subject to the requirements of PCZO Chapter 117.

[Amended by Ordinance 20-01]

Farm Brewery tW QBSZLJJ49|, subject to the requirements of
PCZO Chapter 1 17. lamenoed by ordinance 20-011

Farm Stand IOAR 660-033-0] 30(23)J,A farm stand, not including those farm stands

that are outright permitted in Section 136.030(Q), may be approved if: IAnendedbv
Ordinancr-2&03l

(1) The structures are designed and used for sale of farm crops and liveslock
grown on the farm opeiation, or grown on-the farm operation and other farm
Sperations in Oregon, including the sale of retail incidental items and fee-based

uitiuity to promoie the sale of farm crops or livestock sold at the farm stand, if

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\pLANNING\Legislative Amendmentsu023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).doc 136- 1 8



ATTACHMENT C

the annual sales of the incidental items and fees from promotional activity do

not make up more than25 percent of the total annual sales of the farm stand;

and

(2) The farm stand does not include structures_desigrred for occupancy as a

residence or for activities other than the sale of farm crops and livestock and

does not include structures for banquets, public gatherings or public
entertainment.

(3) As used in this section, "farm crops or livestock" includes both fresh and
processed farm crops and livestock grown on the farm operation, or grown on
the farm operation and other farm operations in Oregon. As used in this
subsection, "processed crops and livestock" includes jams, syrups, apple cider,

that have beenanimal products and other similar farm crops and livestock
food itemsprocessed and converted into another product but not

ma#1@[AmendedbyOrdinancesll-03,13-05andl6-01|

f+t a farm stanA may not Ue u
oroducts or extracts.

(sR) [(oAR 660-033-0130(2s)l@

[Amended by Ordinance I l-03 and2l031

(3) As used in this s

CA "Pacititv nor tn

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendmentsu023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter ChangeO Aoc I 3 6- 1 9



wittr ttre ticensinq
603.038(2).

(T$) Parking of Log Trucks IORS 215.31 1] , not more than seven log trucks may be

parked on a tract when the applicant:

(1) Describes the surrounding land uses and farm and folgqt practices_on the

surrounding properties wlolly or partially located within at least 750-feet of
the outside perimeter of the subject property.

(2) Demonstrates that the proposed use would not force a significant change or
increase the cost ofaciepted farm or forest practices on sunounding land
devoted to farm or forest use.

(UD classes

(vu) Neces
0 I 30(1 6)J ,

(1) A utility facility
public service if
order to provide

ATTACHMENT C

@

oAR 660-033-ce

the
transmission towers over

215

(1) The number of dogs participating in training does not exceed 10 dogs per
training class and lhe numb-er of training classes to be held on-site does not
exceed six per daY; and

(2) The number of dogs participating in a testing. trial does not exceed 60 and the

number of testing lriils to be conducted on-site is limited to four or fewer trials
per calendar year. [Amended by Ordinance 18-011

UTILITIES AND SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL FACILITIES

purpose
200 feet tn

the
is necessary for

ve farm use zone inmust S1 ln an
the service. To demonstrate that a utility facility is necessafy

an applicant must show that reasonable alternatives have been considered and
in an Exclusive Farm Use zone due to one orthat the

more of
facility must be sited
the following factors

(a) Technical and engineering feasibility;

(b) The proposed facility is locationally dependent. A utility facility is
location^ally dependent if it must cross land in one or more areas zoned
for exclusive farm use in order to achieve a reasonably direct route or to
meet unique geographical needs that cannot be satisfied on other lands;

(c) Lack ofavailable urban and nonresource lands;

(d) Availability of existing rights of way;

(e) Public heath and safety; and

(0 Other requirements of state and federal agencies.

Costs associated with any of the factors listed in subsection (+U(1) of this
section may be considered, but cost alone may not be the only consideration in

(2)

F:\CROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).Ooc I 3 6-20



ATTACHMENT C

(3)

determining that a utility facility is necessary for public service. Land costs
shall not bJincluded when coniidering alternative locations for substantially
similar utility facilities and the siting of utility facilities that are not
substantially similar.

The owner of a utility facility approved under this section shall be responsible.
for restoring, as neariy as possible, to its former condition any agriculture land
and associaied improvements that are damaged or otherwise disturbed bythe
siting, maintenanie, repair or reconstruction of the facility. Nothing in this
subsEction shall prevent the owner of the utility eailily from requiring a bond
or other security from a contractor or otherwise imposing on a contractor the
responsibility for restoration.

The governing body of the county or its designee shall impose clear and
objeitive conditioni on an application for utility siting to migrate and minimize
the impacts of the proposed facility, if any, on surrounding lands devoted to
farm uie in order t-o pievent a significant change in accepted farm practices or
a significant increase in the costbf farm practices on sunounding farmlands.

The utility facility necessary for public service may include on-site and off-site
facilities ior temporary workforc-e housing for workers constructing a utility
facility. Such facilitiei must be removed or converted to an allowed use under
OAR 

-660-033-0130(19) 
or other statute or rule when project construction is

complete. off-site facilities allowed under this par_ag|1qh are subjec! tg pnn
660-b33-0130(5). Temporary workforce housing facilities not included in the
initial approvai may be considered through a subsequent application. Such a

requestihall have no effect on the original approval. [Amended by ordinance 1l-031

In addition to the provisions of subsections (TU)(1) to (a) of this section, the
establishment or extension of a sewer system as defined by OAR 660-011-
0060(lX0 in an exclusive farm use zone shall be subject to the provisions of
oAR 660-011-0060.

The provisions of subsecrions (TUXI) to (4) of thlg section do. not .apply to
interstate natural gas pipelines anA associated facilities authori"ld.by and
subject to regulations Uy the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.

Communication towers authorized under this section shall comply with the

standards listed in Section 112.I35. [Amended by ordinance 1l-031

(4)

(5)

(6)

(8)

(7)

(9t An associated transmi for oublic service a

aporovea UV tne PUnn

2!L233CIq) demonstrates that the a
tne reouirements of

(ii) The associated transmission line is co-located-vnlh in rxlsling
trarsloissionluq,

necessarv for safety; or

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative AmendmentsV023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).doc 136-21



ATTACHMENT C

O) After an evaluation of r
that the entire rout
subsections (c) and (

(il fecnnicAanae@;
G!) The associated tran

Uecause ttre associ*
farmUna. as aennea l
areasonablv direct route or to mee raphilallecds
that cannot be satisfied o

Gnt f-ask of an available ex &rclincal&aiL-tv-
suctr as a transmissl
aUove tne surface oftn

(iv) PuUtc neattn

fvt Ottrer requirem

G\ As pertains to subse . the aDplicant shall slolhq
governine bodv of the co on how the applicant wffiirteand
minimize ttre impact . of tne associatea tran

sunounrling tands devoted to fa us

eharuqin accepteA Arm pra uincant increase in t
farm nractices on tne s

(wy) utilizi me o

urban that are
that would utilize a tower(s) or that requires to the

height or type of construction in Section 112.135(C)(1), as

provided in Sections II2.135 and 112.137. lAmended by ordinance 09-061

F:\GROUP\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).aoc 136-22



ATTACHMENT C

PARKS/PUBLIC/QUASI.PUBLIC FACILITIES

(YX) and oAR 660-033-

l0l

As used in this paragraph:

(1) "Model aircraft" means a small-scale version of an airplaqe, gJidgr,

dirigible, or balloon that is used or is intended to be used for llight
conirolled by radio, lines, or design by a person on the ground.

(ZY) Firearms training-facilitv as provided in ORS 197.770, subject to the standards listed
in Section 136.065.

136.050 CONDITIONAL USES [OAR 660-033-0130]. The following uses may be approved,
subject to compliance with the procedures and criteria under Chapter 119, applicable state and

federal regulations, and other specific criteria as may be indicated:

RESOURCE-RELATED USES

(A)

(B) Aquaculture [ORS 2 1 5.253 (2)(p) and OAR 660-03 3-0 I 30(27)J, incl the
tion, cultivation, maintenance and harvesting of aquatic species

subject to with Section 136. t.lmenaeA Uv OrAina

(c)

(1) Notice of the application shall be provided to the S+ate qeeqn Department of
Agriculture at i&st 20 calendar days prior to any administrative aetien deeisioo
or initial public hearing on the application.

Insect Breeding IOAR 660-033-0]30(27)J, including the propagation, cultivation,
mtntenance anci harvesting of insect species, subject to compliance with Section
136.060 and the following criteria:

(1) Insect species shall not include any species under quarantine b^y the State

Department of Agriculture or the United States Department of Agriculture.

helicopter,
and is

F;\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNINC\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).0o. 136-23



(2) Notice of the application shall be provided to the S{ate 9rceqn Department of
Agriculture at ieast 20 calendar days prior to any administrative action or
initial public hearing on the application.

SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCES

ATTACHMENT C

ona
(E) - Not Farml

criteria: t,lmenAed uv Ordina

(1) The dwelling
signihcant change accepted farm orln
lands devoted to farm and forest use;

to the following

will not force a
onsu+rorlndi*gnea&y

sed nonfarm dwelling will not
use pattern of the area. In

(2) The dwelling or activities asso will not signific.antly
increase theio@s on sr*rrerundi+g ncarby lands

devoted to farm and forest use;

(3) The dwelling will be pfaeed srlcd on a lot or parcel created before January 1,

1993;

(4) The dwelling will be lee#C srtcd on q4lor parcel that is predominately.
composed ofNRCS Class IV through VIII soils_thal,_whelinigated,.would not
be classified as prime or unique, Class I or II soils (Note: This includes those

class IV soils dbfined as high-value farmland in oAR 660-033-0020(8Xc));

(s) The

(a)

(b)

shall
alter the

demonstrate that the ProPo
stability of the overall land

To
that

standard, the
shall prepare a ve impact

Includes at least 2,000 acres or a smaller area not less than 1'000 acres,

if the smaller area is a distinct agricultural area based on topography,
soil types, land use pattern, or the type of farm or ranch operations or
practiies that distinguish it from other, adjacent agricultural areas.

Findings shall describe the study area its boundaries, the location of the

subject"parcel within this area, why the selected area is.representative of
theiand use pattern surrounding the subject parcels and is ade^quate to
conduct the inalysis required by this standard. Lands zoned for rural
residential or other urban or nonresource uses shall be identified but not
be included in the study area;

The cumulative impacts study shall identify the broad types of farm uses

(inigated or nonirrigated corps, pasture o-r grazing^lands), the number,
io"alion and type ofexisting dwellings (farm, nonfarm, hardship, etc),

and the dwelling development trends since 1993. Determine the
potential numbel of nonlarm / lot-of-record_dwellin_gs thatcould be

approved under Sections 136.040(8) and_(G).and 136.050(E). The study
sirill identify the predominant soil classifications, the parcels created
prior to January I-, 1993 and the parcels_larger than the minimum lot size

ihut may be divided to create new parcels for nonfarm dwellings under
sectionI36.050(F) and Section 136.070(c). Findings shall describe the

existing land usepattern of the study area including the distribution and

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendmentsu023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changesl.doc 136-24



arrangement of existing uses and the land use pattern that could result
from approval of the possible nonfarm dwellings under this
subparagraph;

(c) Describes whether the proposed dwelling in.conjunction with the
dwellings identified in(b) above will make it more diffrcult for the
existing types of farms in the area to continue operatio! due to 

-

diminiJh6d opportunities to expand, purchase or lease farmland, acquire
water rights 6f diminish the number of tracts or acreage in farm use in a
manner that will destabilize the overall character of the study area.

Determine whether approval of the proposed nonfarm dwellilg together
with existing nonfarm dwellings will materially alter the stability of the

land use pattern in the area. Qllote: The stability of_the.land usepattern
will be materially altered if the cumulative effect of existing and 

.

potential nonfarm dwellings will make it more difficult for the existing
types of farms in the area io continue operation due to diminished
opportunities to expand, purchase or lease farmland, acquire water rights
oi^diminish the number of tracts or acreage in farm use in a manner that
will destabilize the overall character of the study area).

tot€t+edd4wettffi€s-#n+toge+her-wi+tl€xfu+i,ng-nenf€rry{hry1+isgs-€+€+h€+

will alter the stability ef the lmd tlse pattern in the area,

GO The dwelling complies with other applicable conditions.

Note: The parcel qualifying for a dwelling under this section shall be disqualified
for Farm Use Assessment pursuant to ORS 215.236.

OAR 6 03
on a nonfarm parcel

(3) The icant shall
alter the

ATTACHMENT C

Value IqBS
A nonfarm dwelling may be

Section 136.070(C), subject to the

ling will not
area. In

(F) m
3-0130(4)(b)l
created under

following criteria: [l\mendeo ny ordinan

(1) The dwelling or activities assg will not force a
si gnifi cant c-h@iest practices on su*eunding urubv
lands devoted to farm and forest use;

(2) The dwelling or activities asqo ill not signific.antly
increase theiost ofErm oiErest practices on surreunding ncarby lands
devoted to farm and forest use;

To
that

this standard, the
ant prepare a

(a) Includes at least 2,000 acres or a smaller area not less than 1,000 acres,

if the smaller area is a distinct agricultural area based on topography,
soil types, land use pattern, or the type of farm or ranch operations or
practiCes that distinguish it from other, adjacentagricultural areas.

Findings shall described the study area its boundaries, the location of the
subject-parcel within this area, why the selected area is representative of

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changesl.aoc 136-25



ATTACHMENT C

the land use pattern surrounding the subject parcels and is ade^quate to
conduct the inalysis required by this standard. I.ands zoned for rural
residential or otlier urban or nonresource uses shall be identified, but not
included in the study area;

(b) The cumulative impacts study shall identify thq broad types of farm uses

(inigated or nonirrigated corps, pasture or grazing lands), the.number,
iocaTio.r and type ofexisting dwellings (farm, nonfarm, hardship, etc),

and the dwellirig development trends since 1993. Determine the
potential number of nonlarm / lot-of-record dwellin-gs thatcouljLbe
approved under Sections 136.040(8) and_(G).and 136.050(E). The study
shill identify the predominant soil classifications, the parcels created
prior to January l-,1993 and the parcels lalger than the minimum lot size

ihat may be divided to create new parcels for nonfarm dwe.llings under
Section136.050(F) and Section 116.070(C). Findings shall describe the
existing land usepattern of the study area including the distribution and

anangement of eiisting uses and the land use pattem that could result
from-approval of the possible nonfarm dwellings under this
subparagraph;

(c) Describes whether the proposed dwelling in.conjunction with the
dwellings identified in(b; above will make it more difficult for the

existing types of farms in the area to continue operation due to.
diminiJh6d opportunities to expand, purchase or lease farmland, acquire
water rights dr diminish the number of tracts or acreage in farm use in a
mannerlhat will destabilize the overall character of the study area.

Determine whether approval of the proposed nonfarm dwellin_g together
with existing nonfarm dwellings will materially altgr the stability of the
land use pattern in the area. Q.{ote: The stability of_the land usepattern
will be materially altered if the cumulative effect of existing-and 

.

potential nonfarm dwellings will make it more difficult for the existing
iypes of farms in the area to continue operation_due to diminished
opportunities to expand, purchase or lease farmland, acquire water rights
oi'di-inish the number of tracts or acreage in farm use in a manner that
will destabilize the overall character of the study area).

tet ef reedrd dwetli

rvill alter the stability ef the lmd use pattern in the area,

(5D The dwelling complies with other applicable conditions.

Note: The parcel qualifying for a dwelling underthis section shall be disqualified
for Farm Use Assessment pursuant to ORS 215.236.

031

f ti fne frarasnio is iau

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\pLANNING\Legislative Arnendments\2O23\LA 23-02\BOC Adoptionwttachment C (Chapter ChangeO.Ooc 136-26



ATTACHMENT C

f:t ffre appticant aere

il

OTHER RESIDENTIAL USES

COMMERCIAL ACTIVITIES

Ordinances l1-03, 13-05 and l6-0ll

tn Farm Service

[oRS 21s.2 Food service be considered a commercial acti
conjunction farm use where the food service operation complies with
general review
conditions:

standards under Section 136.060 and the following standards and

(GH) Residenrial Home [ORS 215.253(2)(p-], a7 a.f_tlg{tq ORS 197.660, in existing
- dweilings subject tb compliance with Section 136.060.

G+D Room and BoardArrangements IORS 215.253(2)(u)J,for amaximum of five\=/idencessubjecttocompliancewithSection136.060

(IJ)

(rts)
83(2)
with

(1) Each menu item shall incorporate and feature.an unproc.essed or processed

farm product(s) produced by the subject farming operation.

(a) For the purposes of this section, a falm product is "featured" in a menu
item if the menu item places an emphasis on the flavors of the farm
product.

(b) For the purposes of this section, "processed,farm product(s)" includes

Jams, ryrnpr, apple cider, wine, animal products and other similar farm
trops ahd iivesiock that have been processed.from farm products grown
on ih" subject farm operation and cbnverted into another pro{uct either by
the subjecl farming operation or by an off-site processing facility.

(Z) The featured unprocessed or processed farmproduct(s) describedin subsection
(1) shall be offeied for retail sale where the food service is offered.

(3) At least 25o/o of food input value, or .50Yo by weight o.{ pw ingredients, of\ / 
menu items offered by ihe food service operation shall be attributed to the farm
products (prior to pro'cessing) produced by the subject farming operation.

F:\GROUP\COMMDE\APLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2o23\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changer.aoc 136-27



(4) The size of the public seating area shall not exceed 500 square.feet. The food
service operation shall be operated substantially within a building.

(5) The food service operation shall be located on !h9 subje,ct farming operation
and operated by the owner(s) or employee(s) of the subject farm operation.

[Amended by Ordinance l3-041

oAR 660-033-013 0(I4)l

ATTACHMENT C

IIe
ect to the

llowing standards and

(KL) Home Occupations

general review under 136.060
conditions from ORS 2I5.448: t,tmenaea nv oraina

(1) The home occupation shallbs is operated by aresident grsmBlovee-ofu
rc$ideol of the property on which the business is located;

(2) fne Uusiness snal Nqo more than five full or part-time
persons@;

(3) The business iseendueted Sallbe-oper4t€d substantially within.the dwelling
or other building(s) normally associated with uses permitted within this thg
zone rn which the oroperty , and

(4) The business

lAmended by Ordinance 13-051

(LM)
215.283(2)
authorized
Section 136.060.

lar#)

t,tmenOeO fv Oraina

(l'4N) On-site
as provided for in ORS 215.306, subject to comp

will-ne+ interfere with existi+g uses
en-near@

ection
[oRS
110.301, may be

subject to with

for more than 45 days
Section 136.060.wl

@Q) D e s tination Re s ort I O RS 2 I 5. 2 S 3 (2) (t) J, subject to comp-liange ry1t! !h9- l€quiiements of Oregon Statewide Planning Goal Sand Section 136.060. (Note:

destination resorts url trot authorized on laids classified as high-value.)

(QP) Landscape Contracting Business TWOAR 660-03.3-0120, Table
- ry, as Aefrned in ORS 671 .520, or a business providing landgc_ap9 architecture

s-eivices, as described in ORS 671.318, may be authorized if the business is pursued

in conjunction with the growing and marketing of nursery stog\ on the land that
constiiutes farm use, subject to compliance with Section 136.060. [Amended by ordinance

I 1-031

(PQ) Wineryt with a Full-Service Restaurant IORS 2] 5.453J, subject to the requirements of
PCZO Chapter 1 1 7. lamenoed by ordinance I l-09 and ordinance 20-01 |

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative AmendmentsV023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).doc 136-28



MINERAL AND AGGREGATE OPERATIONS

(Qg) The following operations are permitted subject^to compliance with ORS 215,298,
' -:' which descri6es^mining activities in exclusive farm use zones, and with Section

136.060: tlmenaed nv OrAina

(l) Mining and processing of geothermal resources as-defined by ORS 522.005,
and oiiand gas as defrned6y ORS 520.005, not gthgrwile_pgrmitted under the

PeZqB6-030@; [oRS 2t s'283 (2)(bXA)]

ATTACHMENT C

of aggregate and other mineral and subsurface
resources which are 1n the County inventory of mineral and aggregate

resources when the quantity of material proposed to be mined from the site is
estimated to be 2,000,000 tons of aggregate material or more, subject to

1s.283(2Xb)(B)lChapters 115 and 174; IORS 2

(3)

(2)

(4)

Mining of aggregate and other mineral and subsurface resources which are

includEd in ifrle County inventory of mineral and aggregate resources when the
quantity of material pioposed to be mined from the site is estimated to be
j,000,000 tons of aggregate material or less, subject to Chapter 115 and the
following:

(a) Not more than 35 percent of the proposed mining area consists of soil:

(D Classified as Class I on Natural Resource and Conservation
Service (NRCS) maps available on June 11,2004; ot

(ii) Classified as Class II or of a combination of Class II and Class I
or Unique soil, on NRCS maps on June 1 1,2004, unless
average thickness of the aggregate layer within the mining area

exceeds 25 feet in depth; or

(b) A local land use permit that allows m-ining o-n the sitervas issued prior to
April 3, 2003, anb the permit is in effect at the time of the significance
determination; and

(c) The.applicant shall p.rgpgs.e and Polk County shall determine the post-
mlrung use and providd this use in the Comprehensive Plan and land use

regulations.

(D For signific ant aggregate sites on NRCS Class- I, II and Unique
farmland, post-mining use shall be limited to farm uses
permitted in Sections 136.030 and 136.040 (H)-(J), (eN)-.
(XU, and fish and wildlife habitat uses, including wetland . .
mitigation banking. Post-mining uses shall be coordinated with
the dregon Department of Geology and Mineral Industries

1DOGA-MI) regarding the regulation and reclamation of mineral
and aggregate iites, except wnere exempt .

[oAR 660-023-0180(a) and (6)]1

Processing, as defined by ORS 517 .7 50 , of aggregate into asphalt or portland
cement m6re than two miles from one ot rnarq +planted vineyards;a#least
lolaLnea0 acres or,Inole in size, phtecl as of the date the appllc1tio3 f-o1

Satching and blending is filed; and IORS 215.253(2)(b)(C)] andQA&660.
0334130G5)1

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNlNG\Legislative Amendmentsg023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).doc 136-29



(s)

ATTACHMENT C

Processing of other mineral resources and other subsurface resources. IORS
2rs.283(2)(bXD)l

TRANSPORTATION

(su)

(ry)

(NI) Personal Use Airports and Helipads TWOAR.660-033-' - angai,-maintenance and service facilities, subject to
compliance with S-ection 136.060. A personal-use airport, as used in this section,
m"unr an airstrip restricted, except fof aircraft emergencies,-to use by the owner and,

on an infrequeni and occasional 6asis, by invited guegtq, a1d by^ commercial aviation
activities in connection with agriculturai operations. No aircraft may be based on a
personal-use airport other than those owned or controlled by the.owner of the
iirstrip. Exceptions to the activities permitted under this definition may be granted

through waiver action by the Oregon Departryent of Aviation_1n_1ne9if19 instances.

A perional-use airport liwfully eiisting as of September 13, 1975, shall continue to
be'permitted subjebt to any apftcable iules of the Oregon Department of Aviation.

C Pas
requiring the acq of right-of-way, but not
parcels, subject to compliance with Section 136.060

involving the removal or displacement
of new land parcels, subject to compliance with Sectton

2 r s.283(2)(flJ,
in the creation of new land

[oRS 2]5.283(2)(r)J,
not resulting in the creation
136.060.

foRSt
215
addi f
new

Transportation Facilities IORS 215.253(3)(b) oryd OAR 660-0]2-0065.(3)J.Thg.

@ci1itiesmaybeestablished,subjecttocompliancewith
Section 136.060:

(1) Accessory transportation improvements for an authorized land use to provide
safe and 6fncient access to the use. Such accessory transportation
improvements are subject to the same requirements applicable to the land use

to which they are accessory;

(2) Channelization;

(3) Realignment of roads;

(4) Replacement of an intersection with an interchange;

(5) Continuous median turn lane;

(6) New access roads or collectors consistent with OAR 660-012-0065(3Xg) (i.e.,
where the function of the road is to reduce local access to or local traffic on a
state highway). These roads shall be limited to two travel lanes. Private
access ind intersections shall be limited to rural needs or provide adequate
emergency access.

(7) Bikeways, footpaths, and recreation trails not otherwise allowed as a

modification or part of an existing road;

(8) Park and ride lots;

(9) Railroad mainlines and branchlines;

(10) Pipelines;

(ug)

(VX)

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).doc 136-30



ATTACHMENT C

(1 1) Navigation channels;

(12) Replacement of docks and other facilities without significantly increasing the

capacity of those facilities;

(13) Expansions or alterations of public use airports that do not permit service to a
larger class of airplanes; and

(14) Transportation facilities, services and implgvements other than those listed in
this section that serve local travel needs. The travel capacity and level of
service of facilities and improvements serving local travel needs shall be

limited to that necessary to support rural land uses identified in the
acknowledged comprehensive plan or to provide adequate emergency access.

[Amended by Ordinance 0l-l0l

UTILITIES AND SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL FACILITIES

(srY) 200 et in foRS
2 I 5. 28 3 (2) (m)J, subject to compliance
the following criteria:

th 136.060, Section 112.I35, and

21s.283(2)(k)

(1) The location, size, design and functional characteristics of the tower are

reasonably compatible with and have a minimum impact on the livability and

development of other properties in the area;

(2) The tower shall be located so as to not interfere with air traffic; and

(3) The tower will not have a significant adverse effect on identified sensitive fish
or wildlife habitat, natural areas, or scenic areas designated on the
comprehensive plan;

(x4) Site
, subiect to compliance Sectron 136.060

on lands class AS

subject to compliance with Section
allowed on land not defined as high-value

ew solid waste S1tes are not

Value [oAR 660-0 3 3 -o I 3 0 (2e) (b)J,
I 36.060. Composting operations and facilities

farmland shall meet the performance and
nmental Quality under OAR 340-

ue

permitting req
093-0050 and

uirements of the Department of Enviro
340-096-0060. Buildings and facilities used in conjunction with the

composting operation shall on
facility. Onsite sales shall be I

ly be those required for the operation of the subject
imited to bulk loads of at least one unit (7.5 cubic yards)

size that are transported in one vehicle. [Amended by Ordinance 11-031

oAR 660-033-
0130(17) and (22)J,

not
power generation tres m ection 136.050(Zee) or

s+bt€€+

On
tural P Goal is required

ln

, an exception to the
where the permanent features of the power generating facility repee+€s usq, lqquBJL

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendmentsu023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).doc 136-31



ATTACHMENT C

notil-assifrea as high-value, an exception to the statewide Agricultural Lands
Planning Goal is required where the permanent features of the power generating
facility remev€s uses, occupies, or c ore than 20 acres from commercial
agriculturalprod@ationfacilitymayincludeon-siteandoff-site
facilities foitemporary workforce housing for workers constructing a power
generation facility. Such facilities must be removed or converted to an allowed use

inder OAR 660-033-0130(19) or other statute or rule when project construction is
complete. Temporary workforce housing facilities not included in the initial approval
may^be requested through a subsequent conditional use application. Such a request
shall have no effect on the original approval. [Amended by Ordinance ll-03 and2L03l

subject to

Drovlsl0ns:

with Section 136.060.

faplarsi

(il fecnnicl ana e

(ii) AvaitaUititv

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).doc 136-32



ATTACHMENT C

fel fne criteria of

nractrces:

apuoval

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\pLANNING\Legislative Amendmentsu023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).doc 136-33



ATTACHME,NT C

plqi_Cel-lAmended by Ordinance 1 I -03 and23'1031

a(

(a

))

),

),

aa

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).doc 136-34



ATTACHMENT C

utrl€ssi

(at fne orovision ;

195100G0I

aBuovaL

v olla Ian nrenared bv an adeouate
l1

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNtNG\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).doc I 3 6-3 5



ATTACHMENT C

O----NonAieh-value farmland so il
Uacq

to operate success

area.

(i) Is not tocated wi

Gii) Is located within th dssq&€d
i@

hrmland descrihed n ORS 195.30
I

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changetl Oo" 136-36



ATTACHMENT C

fvi Ooes not quatifv a
provision o:llaw; or

(i) Nonarabte soits

successfullv: or

arcai_and

ocated on those hish-value

lities have t
ohtained hrr

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).doc 136-37



ATTACHMENT C

successfullv: or

sods;

(d) No morc than 20 a

fel fne requiremen

F:\GROUP\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changeg.Oo. 136-3 8



ATTACHMENT C

(BBEE) Wind a tower

power generatingfnc , as
Ordinance 09-061

PARKS/PUBLIC/QUASI.PUBLIC FACILITIES

towers

Sections 1 2.135 and 112.137. lrmended by

Public or P IOAR 660-0 3 3 -0 ] 3 0(3 t )1, with
OAR 660-034-0035, or OARto include only the uses

A public park may be established consistent with the provisions of

under
4-0040 which ever ls applicable, subject to compliance with Sections 136.060

and 136.065.
oRS 195.120.

s and
oAR 660-0 ect to compliance with

Section 136.060. New are lands classified as high-value.
New facilities on not high-value farmland within three miles of an urban growth
boundary shall be subject to the standards listed in Sections 136.065(4) and (B)'
Existing facilities on all farmlands may be maintained, enhanced, or
subject to Section 136.065

F:\CROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).doc 136-39



ATTACHMENT C

inehee-ryu*=[Amended by Ordinance I I -03 andZL03l

statrcns,

(2) Vacation or recr
tat<e or reservoir. rounds aevotea to va

Lurposes shall not be a r-ox4Lbouldary
untess an exceptlon
00O, aivision +. C
be estabtished on a s

natural amenitv that i thc-oeeupalrts-ofthe

camoground and desig

enyironment in a manner t
plLvides buffers of exisfu native trees and vesetation or other natur

Uetween campsites.
camDer or camDer's v
consecutive six-m be qeeuplcd bv algnlJraYcl
traiter. vurt or recr
troot-ups sfr* not
scnrisa mav be providcdlo vurts sllorved fot lv subsection (19)(d

(3) Emergencv ourpo
wldnre iaentinea l
witn tfre gmergencv

aestroveA nomes or
or an aaiacent countv
commissarv servic
Campgrounds approv
attowed use wittrin
Order. fne countv m
demonstratlon Uv tn
to support tfre natur
of permanent housing
apptications ntea p

215415{11\

v({s nufhorizec hv this rrr e sha not include intensive

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes) doc 136-40



ATTACHMENT C

aa!0pJltgs

rovide vurts ft
0 camnsifes w

ft) fne subiect oro

(c) fne suUiect nro h:value&rolaad
(clt fne number of prooo

fel ffre numUer of nro

As used in this paragraph:

(1) "Wrt" means a round, domed shelter of cloth or canvas on a collapsible frame
with no plumbing, sewage disposal hook-up or internal cooking appliance.

C 2 I 5. 2 8 3 (2) (w)1, and activities
related to county fairgrounds by county fair boards established

pursuant to ORS 565.210, subject to comPl iance with Section 136.060.

(W[)Gol-f Courses and accessoryt uses oAR 660-03 3 -0 I 3 0 (2 0)J,,
new golfcourse and accessory uses

farmland, asmay e approved on a tract determined not to be high-value

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\pLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).doc 136-4I



ATTACHMENT C

defined in ORS 195.300(lQ. eensiffi An existing qolf 
-

course on all farmlands rnay Ue maintained, enhanced, or expanded, up to 36 loles
on the same tract, consistent with Section 136.060 and OAR 660-033-0130(18). In
addition, new golf courses or the expansion of existing golf courses within three
miles ofan urb-an growth boundary ihall be subject to the standards listed in Section
136.065. tnmenoea nv oraina

As used in this paragraph:

(1) "Golf Course" means anareaof land with highly maintained natural turf laid
out for the game of golf with a series of 9 or 18 regulation golf course holes, or
a combinafon 9 and 18 holes, each including a tee, afairway, a putting green'

and often one or more natural or artificial hazards, consistent with the
following:

(a) A regulation 18 hole golf course is generally characterizqd_Uf q site_of
about 120 to 150 acres of land-, has aplayable distance of 5,000 to7,200
yards, and apar of 64 to 73 strokes.

(b) A regulation nine t hole golf course is generally characteriz,ed by a site

of about 65 to 90 aires oflland, has a playable distance of 2,500 to 3,600
yards, and a par of 32 to 36 strokes.

ranses.

(e4) An accessoly use to a golf course is a facility or_improvement that is
incidental to the operatlon of the golf course and is either necessary for
the operation and maintenance of the golf course or that provides goods

or servlces customarily provided to golfers at a golf course and conforms
to the following:

(i) An accessory use or activity does not serve- the needs of the
non-golfing public. Accessory uses to a golf course include
parking, maintenance buildings, cart storage and repair, practice
range or driving range, clubhouse, restrooms, lockers and
showers, food and beverage service, pro-shop, a practice or
beginners course as part ofan 18 hole or larger golfcourse, or
golf tournament.

(iD Accessory uses to a golf course do not include.sporting facilities
unrelated to golf such as tennis courts, swimming pools, or
weight roomi, wholesale or retail operations oriented to the
non-golfing public, or housing.

(iiD A use is accessory to a golf course o,nly when limited in size
and orientation to serve the needs of persons and their guests
who patronrzethe golf course to golf.

(iv) Commercial ae+i#+ies sctvlacs such as apro shop are accessory
to a golf course when located in the clubhouse.

(v) Accessoty.ylgs Tay include one or more food and beverage
servlce facilities in addition to food and beverage service
facilities located in a clubhouse. Food and beverage servirc

F:\GROUP\COMMDEV\PLANNlNG\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Change l.aoc 136-42



l l-031

(HHS)L iv inq H i s t ory Mus e um t W OA R 6 6 0 - 0 3 3 - 0 I 3 0 (2 I ) l, related
' :6'rffi o@a governmental agency or a local

historical society, subject to compliance with Sections 136.060 and 136.065. A
living history museu- may inclu^de limited commercial activities and facilities that

are dTrectly ielated to the use and enjoyment of the museum and located withln
authentic buildings of the depicted hisioric period or the museum administration
building, if areas-other than an exclusive farm use zone cannot accommodate the

-ur",rrilund related activities or if the museum administration buildings and parking
lot are located within one quarter mile of an urban growth boundary. [Amended bv

Ordinance I 1-031

As used in this paragraPh:

(1) "Living history museum" means a facility designed to.depict and interpret

"ueryd"ay 
life ind culture of some specific historic period 

".siltg 
authentic

buildings, tools, equipment and people to simulate past activities and events.

(2) "Local historical society" means the local historical _sgc!e!4, recognized as such

by the county governing body and organized under ORS Chapter 65.

ATTACHMENT C

Accessory and beverage servlce
shall not ignated for or include structures for

banquets, public gatherings or public entertainment'

k) /, owned by a
and by and for

subject to with 136.060

and 136.065. A community center authorized under this section may provide services

to veterans, including but not limited to emergency and transitional shelter,
preparation and servlce of meals, vocational and educational counseling and referral

to local, state or federal agencies providing medical, mental health, disability income

replacement and substance abuse services, only in a facility that is in existence on

January I,2006. The services may not include direct delivery of medical, mental
health, disability rncome replacement or substance abuse services. [Amended bv ordinance

New schools and the(#lL)Schools IORS 2 I 5. 2 8 3 (2) (aa)
expansion of existing schools ate
standards: InmenAeo nv Or0ina

(1)

to 136.060 and the following

a school,
for residents of the rural area in the

including all

@primarily
school is located. New schools under this section are not authorized on high-
value farm land. Nerv seheels that are leeated rvithin three miles ef an urban
grewth beundary shall eemply with the standards listed in Seetien 136,065(r\)
an+(B)

(2)

esta
former ly allowed pursuant

to ORS 215.213(l)(a) or ORS 215.283( in effect before January 1,1)(a) as
subject2010, are isa non-conforming uses and to the standards of Chapter

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter ChangeO.Oo. 136-43



ATTACHMENT C

ll4=

(at fne expansion co

fUt fne sctroot was e '
(cl fne exoansions o

(il On wnicn tne scno

(d) The school is aoubl hgrade
12.

O A maximum caoacitv of peoole in the struo
structures:

(ii) n minimum aist

(iii) A maximum aens

(3) Existing schools not including those
listed in subsection of this

11\ The ifrr mrrcf he qrrfhnri "-rlcr f)Pq ?rqA ,5O ?roa /.(n.

O) Thellacililv must be collocated with a center or a Dublic or

scnoot attowea unA

136.060. GENERAL REVIEW STANDARDS IOAR 660-033-0130(5)1. To ensure

compatibility with farming and forestry activities,ihe Planning Director or hearings body shall
deteimine that the proposed use meets the following requirements:

(B) The proposed use will not significantly increase the cost of accepted farm or forest
practices on surculding lands devoted to farm or forest use'

136.070. LAND PARTITION STANDARDS IORS 215.263(l)1. No land(s) located within
the Exclusive Farm Use Zoning District shall be partitioned without the expressed appro_val of
Polk County under the provisidns of Chapter 136 and the Polk County Subdivision and Partition

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative AmendmentsV023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).doc 136'44



Ordinance. A plat shall be prepared by a registered surveyor to document the land.partition. 
.

Upon final approval of the ptat, ttt" survey Jhall_be recorded by the.Polk County Clerk. Parcels

resulting from a foreclosure action are exempted frgm the partitioning process under ORS

92.010()@). A deed or instrument conveying land in lieu of foreclosure shall not constitute a

foreclosure action.

In the Exclusive Farm Use ZoningDistrict, the following standards shall apply:

(B) Nonfarm, Nonresidential Parcels IOnS ZtS.Z0:(:) q-nd OAR 660-033-0.100(+e€)1.
es rnay be created for nonfarm, nonresidential uses

auihorized by this Ordinance, subject to compliance with the^procedural and

technical requirements of ORS Chapter 92,the Polk County Subdivision and

Partitioning Ordinance and the following criteria:

(1) A preliminary site plan shall be submitted that depicts the p.{oposed lot
boundaries and thslocation of all existing and proposed buildings, structures

and related facilities, to include the on-site septic system and repair areas,

water facilities, utility easements, vehicular access, circulation, parking and

loading areas;

(2) The proposed parcel shall be sized to meet, but shall not exceed, the
requirements of the nonfarm use and development as depicted on the
preliminary site plan;

(3) Each parcel shall be provided legal access to a public road by frontage or
easement;

(4) Prior to filing the partition plat, each parcel shall be evaluated for on_-site septic

use, or a *aiiet submitted hom a party that has agreed to purchase the parcel,
subject to approval of the land partition (Note: The owner_may also waive the

evaiuation, iirbject to the filingof a restriction on the deed which precludes the
placement of a dwelling on the parcel);

(5) A partition plat shall be filed within_two years from the effective date of
prelimi.taryapproval for each parcel (Note:_One year extensions may be

requested prior to expiration of the approval).

ATTACHMENT C

(c) a -Fami n [oAR 660-033-

olk County

(1) The proposed nonfarm parcel is intended for the siting of a nonfarm dwelling
authorized by this Ordinance;

(2) The originating parcel is equal to or larger than the applicable minimum parcel

size and the proposed parcel is not less than 20 acres in size;

(3) The parent parcel is not stocked to the requirements of ORS 527 .610 to
527.770;

(4) The parent parcel is composed of at least 95 percent NRCS Class VI through
VIII soils;

(5) The parcel is composed of at least 95_percent soils not capable of producing 50

cubic feet per acre per year ofwood fiber; and

(6) The proposed nonfarm parcel is disqualifi-ed from special farm use tax
assessment, as required under ORS 215'236'

F:\GROUP\COMMDEV\PLANNlNG\Legislative Amendmentsu023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter ChangeO Oo" 136-45



ATTACHMENT C

(D)

(7) A partition plat shall be filed within two years from the effective date of
preliminaryapproval for each parcel (Note: One year extensions may be

requested prior to expiration of the approval).

(8) A subdivision or series partition, to create non-farm, residential parcels is-

prohibited. "Series partition" is defined as a series of partitions of land which
iesults in the creatioh of four or more parcels over a period of more than one
calendar year.

No4farm Parcel-for Public Parks or Openspace IORS 215.263(10) qn42]546!1. n
parcefGr pubtiCparks or open space may be created when the land partitio^n is for
ihe p,.rrpos-e of allowing a piovidbr of public parks or open space, or.a not-for-profit
land conservation organization, to purchase at least one of the resulting parcels
subject to the following criteria: fnmenoea ny oroina

(1) A parcel created by the land partitien diyisio! that contains a dwelling is large
enough to support continued residential use ofthe parcel.

(2) A parcel created pursuant to this subsection that does not contain a dwelling:

(a) Is not eligible for siting a dwelling, except as may be authorized under
oRS 195.120;

(b) May not be considered in approving or denying an application for siting
any other dwelling;

(c) May not be considered in approving a redesignation or rezoning of-
forestlands or farmlands except for a redesignation or rezoning to allow
a public park, open space or other natural resource use; and

(3) A parcel created pursuant to this subsection may not be smaller than 25 acres

unless the purpose of the land partition is:

(a) To facilitate the creation of a wildlife or pedestrian corridor or the
implementation of a wildlife habitat protection plan; or

(b) To allow a transaction in which at least one party is a public park or
open space provider, or a not-for-profit land conservation organization,
t6at hai cumulative ownership of at least 2,000 acres of open space or
park property.

(4) A partition plat shall be filed within two years from the effective date of
preliminary approval for each parcel Q'{ote: One year extensions may be
iequested prior to expiration of the approval).

(G) Nortfarm Parcel for a Church IORS 215.263(1])J. A parcel may_be created to
establish a church including cemeteries in conjunction with the church if they meet
the following requirements:

(1) The church has$een-apprevc ls!€roi$qd under Section +3#0(W)
136.030(K);

(2) The newly created parcel is not larger than five acres; and

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNINC\Legislative Amendmentsu023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changesl.Ooc 136-46



(3) The remaining parcel, not including the churc!, meets the minimum.parcel size

described in Se^ction 136.070(A) eiiher by itself or after it is consolidated with
another parcel or lot.

(4) A partition plat shall be filed within two years from the effective date of
preliminaryapproval for each parcel. (f{ote: One year extensions may be

iequested prior to expiration of the approval.)

ATTACHMENT C

IoRS 215.263(2);ffid ORS 215.26(H) an Ur

IlmendeO ny Ordina

(2t) If the parcel contains a dwelling, the parcel must be large enough to support
continued residential use;

(2) If the parcel does not contain a dwelling, the parcel:

(a) Is not eligible for a dwelling, except as authorized by oRS 195.120;

(b) May not be considered in approving or denying an application for siting
any other dwelling; and

(c) May not be considered in approving or redesignation or rezoning of
gsir+anes agrleutturaLtands under the acknowledged comprehensive
plan and land use reffiions, except for a redesignation or rezoning to
allow a public park, open space or other natural resource use'

(Q) The owner of the parcel not containing a dwelling.shall record with the
County Clerk an irrevocable deed restiiction prohibiting the. owner and all
successors rn interest from pursuing a cause ofaction or claim ofrelief
alleging injury from farming or forest practices for which a claim or action is
not allowed under ORS 30.936 or 30.937. @

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-02\BOC Adoption\Attachment C (Chapter Changes).doc 136-47



POLK OUNTY

INrnnoFFrcE MnvToRANDUM
POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE

TO: Board of Commissioners

FROM: Nicole Pineda, Executive Assistant

DATE: October 19,2023

SUBJECT: Consider Re-appointment to Polk County Planning Commission

RECOMMENDATION:

Re-appoint Michael Schilling (position 2)to the Polk County Planning Commission, term to

expire December 31 ,2027 .

ISSUE:

Should the Board reappoint Michael Schilling to the Polk County Planning Commission?

BACKGROUND:

Michael Schilling has served on the Planning Commission since 2008. Mr. Schilling has

agreed to continue serving.

FISCAL IMPAGT:

None.



INrnnoFFrcn MnnnoRANDUM

POLK COUNTY

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT:

POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE

Board of Commissioners

Nicole Pineda, Executive Assistant

October 19,2023

Consider Re-appointment to Polk County Planning Commission

RECOMMENDATION:

Re-appoint Chris Patoine (position 4) to the Polk County Planning Commission, term to
expire December 31,2027 .

ISSUE:

Should the Board reappoint Chris Patoine to the Polk County Planning Commission?

BACKGROUND

Chris Patoine has served on the Planning Commission since 2019. Mr. Patoine has

agreed to continue serving.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None



INrnnoFFrcn MnvToRANDUM

POLK COUNTY

TO

POLK COLTNTY COURTHOUSE

Board of Commissioners

FROM: Nicole Pineda, Executive Assistant

DATE: October 19,2023

SUBJECT: Fair Board Reappointment

RECOMM DATION

That the BOC approve the reappointment of Suzanne Burbank to the Fair Board, terms to

expire December 31, 2026.

ISSUE:

Should Polk County reappointment Suzanne Burbank to the Fair Board?

BACKGROUND:

Suzanne Burbank is a current member of the Fair Board, and has said that she would like

to extend her term.

FISGAL IMPACT:

None.


	23-02.pdf
	BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


	Staff Contact: Eric McAvoy
	Department: GIS
	Title: GIS Manager
	Consent Calendar Date: 25 October 2023
	Contractor Name: Polk Soil and Water Conservation District
	Contractor Address: 580 Main Street, Suite A
	City, State, Zip: Dallas, OR, 97338
	From: Approval
	Thru: June 30 2024
	Contract Amount: 1500
	Sole Source: Off
	Competitive Quote: Off
	Formal Bid: Off
	Request for Proposals: Off
	Personal Services: Off
	Special/Exempt: Yes
	Special Exempt: IGA
	Discussion: Polk SWCD is looking to modernize their GIS Data and use it to create updated inventories and project plans. Polk County GIS will provide consultation and help guide them through the data conversion process.
	Fiscal Impact: Polk County to recieve $1500 in exchange for up to 20 hours of GIS work. Hours in excess of 20 will be charged at normal fee rate.
	Recommendation: Polk County GIS recommends you approve this agreement
	E-mail: mcavoy.eric@co.polk.or.us
	Email 3: 
	Name 1: Eric McAvoy
	Name 2: Beth Thiel
	E-mail 2: beth.thiel@polkswcd.com
	Name 3: 


